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ABOUT OUR

COMPANY

We exist to build meaningful connections 
that strengthen our communities, empower 
our employees, and enrich lives. Our 
purpose goes beyond banking—it’s about 
providing guidance, stability, and support 
to help individuals, businesses, and 
communities plan for a stronger financial 
future. By staying rooted in local values and 
looking ahead to anticipate opportunities 
and challenges, we create lasting success 
for the people, partners, and places we 
proudly serve.

The Power of One:
Local Leadership and Growth in 2025
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Consistently perform extraordinarily. Shareholders, 
customers, and our staff know that we care, 
understand, and are responsive to their needs 
through our actions. We actively seek out the needs 
of the communities we serve and volunteer our time, 
leadership, and expertise.

Be honest and ethical in what we say and do. Our 
actions align with our words.

We only succeed as a team, working together toward 
a common goal. We leverage our talents to serve our 
stakeholders' best interests. We regularly extend 
meaningful and sincere acknowledgment to others 
for contributing to our success and we celebrate our 
accomplishments.

We understand how we contribute; our work and 
contributions are meaningful and valued. We actively 
participate and are involved. We live our Mission and 
Values and strive toward our Vision in our daily work.

OUR SHARED

VALUES

SERVICE EXCELLENCE

INTEGRITY

COLLABORATION

ENGAGEMENT

We are fast-followers to utilize technology. We are 
market-leaders in how we serve customers.

We thoughtfully pivot our plan and resources to meet 
the needs of our stakeholders.

INNOVATION

AGILITY
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OUR

MISSION & VISION

We are a market driven, people oriented, local banking organization dedicated 

to enhancing shareholder value by providing our customers with diversified 

financial services that help them to achieve economic success and financial 

security.  We will pursue these goals while balancing shareholder and customer 

interests with the ongoing welfare of our employees and local communities.

Our individual markets and brands maintain the independence, flexibility and 

sensitivity to meet the needs of the communities that we to serve.  We will seek 

to expand sensibly into new markets when we believe that our business model 

and community banking philosophy can be successfully extended.

In summary:

MISSION

COMMUNITY BUILDING THROUGH COMMUNITY BANKING.

VISION
Leverage the collective strengths of our talented and market-focused teams to 

create customer loyalty, empower employees, and enhance value for our 

communities and shareholders.
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Dear Fellow Shareholder:

We are pleased to report that 2024 was another successful 
year as we continue to position ourselves as the bank 
of choice in each of the respective markets that we 
serve. Earnings of $12.7 million remain strong despite 
the investments made during the year related to the 
expansion of our Rockford market banking talent, 
implementation of our new digital platform, and charter 
consolidation efforts. Year over year saw growth in 
Stockholder’s Equity of 8.9% or $13 million; Assets of 
3.7% or $58 million; Deposits of 3.2% or $43 million; and 
Loans of 2.9% or $31 million. Our Common Stock price 

per share at 12/31/24 of $33.00 represents a year over year increase of $9.10 per share 
or 29.9%.  Despite an increase in Non-Performing Loans of $12 million year over 
year, this increase continues to be concentrated in a select few credits and is not 
representative of negative trends in specific lines of business. We have significantly 
strengthened our credit review and oversight processes over the last three years, 
and the identification of these credits is largely attributable to those efforts as 
well as increased transparency at the individual charter levels associated with the 
upcoming consolidation.  

As noted in earlier Quarterly Newsletters, our digital banking platform 
implementation was completed in 2024 and is now fully functional. This new 
platform enables us to compete with any local, regional, or national banking 
competitor and enhances our ability to attract new clients and expand services 
to current clients, which will contribute to both loan and deposit growth as well 
as enhanced non-interest income. The new platform will further enable us to 
provide greatly expanded Treasury Management services and as such equip our 
Commercial Bankers with a robust array of products to take to market as we seek 
to increase market share across our global footprint. As also announced in Q3 of 
2024, our charter consolidation efforts are well under way with a targeted legal 
consolidation date of May 1, 2025. The consolidation project is a huge effort across 
the organization, and our amazingly dedicated staff has risen to the challenge of 
making this as seamless as possible for our customers. The full consolidation of 
systems will not be complete until early Q4 of 2025, so there is a good deal of work 
to be done between now and then, but we have made a significant investment in 
systems, support, and human resources to ensure this goes as smoothly as possible. 
The teamwork and dedication associated with this immense effort is remarkable. 
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Relative to senior management, we are extremely proud of the highly experienced 
and talented team we have assembled this year which began with Brooke Crull 
joining us as our Chief Risk Officer. Brooke holds her CPA certification and joins 
us following a successful career in the banking and audit division of Wipfli. 
Jeff Hultman joins us as President of the Company and was the leader of the team 
of talented Commercial Bankers that joined us from Illinois Bank and Trust in 
Rockford where he held the title of President & CEO for many years. Included in 
the senior management individuals that joined us from Illinois Bank and Trust are 
our new head of commercial banking Kyle Logan, and head of consumer banking 
Gina Caruana. Longtime Lena State Bank President and CEO Curtis Derrer has 
accepted the role of head of ag lending, which further exhibits our commitment 
to the agribusiness sector. Lastly, Todd James joined us as Chief Financial Officer. 
Todd also carries the CPA designation and joined us following a long career with 
Blackhawk Bank in Beloit, Wisconsin where he held the title of President and CEO 
of the Holding Company. The addition of these individuals along with the terrific 
team already in place has created what I regularly refer to as the “Dream Team” 
that will allow us to successfully reach our goal of being the top performing bank 
in our markets. 

Foresight Financial Group and Foresight Bank will continue to maintain a 
traditional, relationship-based business model that focuses on safety and soundness 
and service to the communities in which we reside. Community Building through 
Community Banking will continue to be who we are and as such will drive our 
efforts to achieve that goal while at the same time acting upon opportunities for 
increased market share and shareholder value as they present themselves. 

Thank you again for being a shareholder of Foresight Financial Group. It is through 
your continued support that we realize the success we have achieved to date, and 
the success for which we strive as we move into the future. 

Respectfully,

 

Peter Q. Morrison 
Chief Executive Officer
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Common Equity Capital & ACL Tier One Capital & ACLNon-Performing Assets

*ACL: Allowance for Credit Losses     **Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

**AOCI Gain/(Loss)

TRENDS IN CAPITAL & ACL* AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS (in thousands)

12/31/2019

2,081

12/31/2020

6,319

12/31/2021

1,543

12/31/2022

(36,988)

12/31/2023

(32,510)

12/31/2024

(33,097)

4,914

10,186

8,918

6,822

16,045

28,242

153,800

151,719

167,504

161,185

169,212

167,669

141,772

178,760

155,058

187,568

168,092

201,189

TRENDS IN ASSETS, DEPOSITS & LOANS* (in thousands)

Assets Deposits Loans*

12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024

1,020,093

1,213,588

778,874

1,154,460

1,384,600

818,611

1,235,444

1,453,784

845,847

1,294,707

1,477,460

954,426

1,357,557

1,574,728

1,069,450

1,400,703

1,633,219

1,100,657

*Loans held for investment NET of ALLL.
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NET INCOME (in millions)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

11.02
10.29

11.39

13.63
14.50

12.66

COMMON STOCK PER SHARE TANGIBLE BOOK & MARKET VALUE

Tangible Book Value Market Value

12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024

$37.69

$36.10

$41.24

$29.88

$43.13

$32.90

$35.67

$27.50

$40.08

$23.90

$42.59

$33.00
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
Foresight Financial Group, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the "financial statements") of Foresight Financial Group,
Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audits of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Company and to meet our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Report on Prior Year Financial Statements 

The financial statements of Foresight Financial Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022 were
audited by other auditors, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 8, 2023.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a
guarantee that audits conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 



11

2024 Annual Report
To the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
Foresight Financial Group, Inc.

In performing audits in accordance with GAAS, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audits.

March 10, 2025
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024 and 2023 

ASSETS              2024             2023 
   
Cash and due from banks $16,905  $22,168  
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 45,357  20,828  
Federal funds sold      1,738       2,722  

Total cash and cash equivalents      64,000       45,718  
   

Interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits        4,434         4,511  

Debt securities:   

  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    369,945     365,618  

  Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTM)        3,263         3,596  

Marketable equity securities and other investments        7,592         5,718  

Loans held for sale          852           990  

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of $14,694 and $14,195,   

     respectively   1,100,657    1,069,450  

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net            -             -  

Premises and equipment, net      17,125       17,525  

Bank owned life insurance       24,459        24,644  

Other assets       40,892        36,958  

Total assets $1,633,219  $1,574,728  

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

   

Liabilities:   

  Deposits:   

     Noninterest-bearing $249,076  $256,205  
     Interest-bearing    1,151,627     1,101,352  

Total deposits    1,400,703     1,357,557  

  Federal funds purchased        5,804         1,153  

  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase     15,017      31,554  

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and other borrowings      40,911       25,954  
  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,386       17,647  

Total liabilities  1,479,821   1,433,865  

   

Stockholders' equity:   

Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -            -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,242,121 and 4,080,304 shares issued, respectively)        1,060         1,020  
  Additional paid-in capital      16,482       11,432  

  Retained earnings     184,961      174,826  

  Treasury stock, at cost (644,079 and 569,079 shares, respectively)      (16,008)      (13,905) 

  Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (33,097)      (32,510) 

Total stockholders' equity     153,398      140,863  

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,633,219  $1,574,728  

 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

ASSETS              2023             2022 
   
Cash and due from banks $22,168       $28,354  
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 20,828        7,975  
Federal funds sold      2,722       7,493  

Total cash and cash equivalents      45,718       43,822  
   

Interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits        4,511          6,058  

Debt securities:   

  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    365,618      391,334  

  Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTM)        3,596          4,076  

Marketable equity securities and other investments        5,718         3,945  

Loans held for sale          990            421  

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of $14,195 and $14,541,   

     respectively   1,069,450      954,426  

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net            -             70  

Premises and equipment, net      17,525        17,598  

Bank owned life insurance       24,644     24,058  

Other assets       36,958      31,652  

Total assets $1,574,728  $1,477,460  

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

   

Liabilities:   

  Deposits:   

     Noninterest-bearing $256,205   $276,055  
     Interest-bearing    1,101,352     1,018,652  

Total deposits    1,357,557     1,294,707  

  Federal funds purchased        1,153               -  

  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase     31,554  36,298  

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and other borrowings      25,954         7,366  
  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,647       11,858  

Total liabilities  1,433,865     1,350,229  

   

Stockholders' equity:   

Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -             -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,080,304 and 4,071,494 shares issued, respectively)        1,020         1,018  
  Additional paid-in capital      11,432       11,138  

  Retained earnings     174,826       164,597  

  Treasury stock, at cost (569,079 and 509,079 shares, respectively)      (13,905)      (12,534) 

  Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (32,510)      (36,988) 

Total stockholders' equity     140,863       127,231  

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,574,728   $1,477,460  
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  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    365,618      391,334  
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     Noninterest-bearing $256,205   $276,055  
     Interest-bearing    1,101,352     1,018,652  
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  Federal funds purchased        1,153               -  
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  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,647       11,858  

Total liabilities  1,433,865     1,350,229  
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Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -             -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,080,304 and 4,071,494 shares issued, respectively)        1,020         1,018  
  Additional paid-in capital      11,432       11,138  

  Retained earnings     174,826       164,597  
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Consolidated Statements of Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

        2024     2023     2022 

Interest and dividend income:      

Loans, including fees $69,284   $59,919   $42,990  
Debt securities:      

Taxable 7,214   6,287   6,117 
Tax-exempt 1,647   1,935   2,518  

Interest-bearing deposits in banks and other 2,451   2,198   646  
Federal funds sold      108        188       190  

Total interest and dividend income 80,704    70,527    52,461        
Interest expense:      

Deposits 29,855   19,802   6,291  
Federal funds purchased 64   78   38  
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 484   668   323  
FHLB and other borrowings 1,314   708    136  

Total interest expense 31,717    21,256    6,788  
      

Net interest and dividend income 48,987   49,271   45,673  
      

Provision for credit losses 1,052    1,105    552  
      

Net interest and dividend income,      
  after provision for credit losses 47,935   48,166   45,121  

      
Noninterest income:      

Customer service fees 1,421   1,155   1,055  
Loss on sales and calls of AFS securities, net (111)  (185)  (246) 
Gain on sale of loans, net 772   611   969  
Loan servicing fees, net 249   814   1,978  
Bank owned life insurance 1,110   585   580  
ATM / interchange fees 2,143   2,155   2,126  
Other    1,609      2,421   1,947  

Total noninterest income 7,193    7,556    8,409  
      

Noninterest expenses:      
Salaries and employee benefits 24,670   22,627   22,627  
Occupancy expense of premises, net 2,404   2,298   2,312  
Outside services 1,611   1,311   1,553  
Data processing 3,188   3,025   3,040  
Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net 12  (43)  (53) 
Other 7,009   7,384   6,343  

Total noninterest expenses 38,894    36,602    35,822  
      

Income before income taxes 16,234   19,120   17,708  
      

Income tax expense 3,570    4,574    4,082  
      

Net income $12,664    $14,546    $13,626  
      

Earnings per common share:      
Basic  $3.61    $4.08    $3.83  
Diluted  $3.59    $4.08    $3.81  
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

     2024     2023     2022 

      
Net income $12,664    $14,546    $13,626  

      
Other comprehensive (loss) income:      

Unrealized holding (losses) gains on securities available for sale,      
 net of tax of $155, $1,917, & $15,292, respectively (666)   4,346   (38,707) 

Reclassification adjustments for net securities losses      
 recognized in income, net of tax of $32, $53, & $70, respectively 79    132    176  

      
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (587)    4,478    (38,531) 

      
Total comprehensive income (loss)  $12,077    $19,024    $(24,905) 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

ASSETS              2023             2022 
   
Cash and due from banks $22,168       $28,354  
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 20,828        7,975  
Federal funds sold      2,722       7,493  

Total cash and cash equivalents      45,718       43,822  
   

Interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits        4,511          6,058  

Debt securities:   

  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    365,618      391,334  

  Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTM)        3,596          4,076  

Marketable equity securities and other investments        5,718         3,945  

Loans held for sale          990            421  

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of $14,195 and $14,541,   

     respectively   1,069,450      954,426  

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net            -             70  

Premises and equipment, net      17,525        17,598  

Bank owned life insurance       24,644     24,058  

Other assets       36,958      31,652  

Total assets $1,574,728  $1,477,460  

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

   

Liabilities:   

  Deposits:   

     Noninterest-bearing $256,205   $276,055  
     Interest-bearing    1,101,352     1,018,652  

Total deposits    1,357,557     1,294,707  

  Federal funds purchased        1,153               -  

  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase     31,554  36,298  

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and other borrowings      25,954         7,366  
  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,647       11,858  

Total liabilities  1,433,865     1,350,229  

   

Stockholders' equity:   

Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -             -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,080,304 and 4,071,494 shares issued, respectively)        1,020         1,018  
  Additional paid-in capital      11,432       11,138  

  Retained earnings     174,826       164,597  

  Treasury stock, at cost (569,079 and 509,079 shares, respectively)      (13,905)      (12,534) 

  Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (32,510)      (36,988) 

Total stockholders' equity     140,863       127,231  

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,574,728   $1,477,460  
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

     2024     2023     2022 

      
Net income $12,664    $14,546    $13,626  

      
Other comprehensive (loss) income:      

Unrealized holding (losses) gains on securities available for sale,      
 net of tax of $155, $1,917, & $15,292, respectively (666)   4,346   (38,707) 

Reclassification adjustments for net securities losses      
 recognized in income, net of tax of $32, $53, & $70, respectively 79    132    176  

      
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (587)    4,478    (38,531) 

      
Total comprehensive income (loss)  $12,077    $19,024    $(24,905) 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

     Accumulated  
  Additional   Other  

 Common Paid- Retained Treasury Comprehensive  
 Stock in Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total 

       

Balance – January 1, 2022 $1,015  $10,768  $152,903  $(11,002) $1,543  $15,227  

Net income - - 13,626  - - 13,626  

Other comprehensive loss - - - - (38,531) (38,531) 

Cash dividends ($.54 per share) - - (1,932) - - (1,932) 

Purchase of treasury stock (44,760 shares) - - - (1,532) - (1,532) 

Stock-based compensation expense - 25  - - - 25  

Restricted stock vested (11,406 shares) 3  345  - - - 348  

Balance – December 31, 2022 1,018  11,138  164,597  (12,534) (36,988) 127,231  

Effect of change in accounting principle -        

Adoption of ASU 2016-13 - - (2,029) - - (2,029) 

Net income - - 14,546  - - 14,546  

Other comprehensive income - - - - 4,478  4,478  

Cash dividends ($.64 per share) - - (2,288) - - (2,288) 

Purchase of treasury stock (60,000 shares) - - - (1,371) - (1,371) 

Stock-based compensation expense - 16  - - - 16  

Restricted stock vested (8,810 shares) 2  278  - - - 280  

Balance – December 31, 2023 1,020  11,432  174,826  (13,905) (32,510) 140,863  

Net income - - 12,664  - - 12,664  

Other comprehensive loss - - - - (587)  (587)  

Cash dividends ($.72 per share) - - (2,529) - - (2,529) 

Purchase of treasury stock (75,000 shares) - - - (2,103) - (2,103) 

Stock private placement (152,718 shares) 38 4,762 - - - 4,800 

Stock-based compensation expense - 16  - - - 16  

Restricted stock vested (9,099 shares) 2  272  - - - 274  

Balance – December 31, 2024 $1,060  $16,482  $184,961  $(16,008) $(33,097) $153,398  

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

ASSETS              2023             2022 
   
Cash and due from banks $22,168       $28,354  
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 20,828        7,975  
Federal funds sold      2,722       7,493  

Total cash and cash equivalents      45,718       43,822  
   

Interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits        4,511          6,058  

Debt securities:   

  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    365,618      391,334  

  Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTM)        3,596          4,076  

Marketable equity securities and other investments        5,718         3,945  

Loans held for sale          990            421  

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of $14,195 and $14,541,   

     respectively   1,069,450      954,426  

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net            -             70  

Premises and equipment, net      17,525        17,598  

Bank owned life insurance       24,644     24,058  

Other assets       36,958      31,652  

Total assets $1,574,728  $1,477,460  

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

   

Liabilities:   

  Deposits:   

     Noninterest-bearing $256,205   $276,055  
     Interest-bearing    1,101,352     1,018,652  

Total deposits    1,357,557     1,294,707  

  Federal funds purchased        1,153               -  

  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase     31,554  36,298  

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and other borrowings      25,954         7,366  
  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,647       11,858  

Total liabilities  1,433,865     1,350,229  

   

Stockholders' equity:   

Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -             -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,080,304 and 4,071,494 shares issued, respectively)        1,020         1,018  
  Additional paid-in capital      11,432       11,138  

  Retained earnings     174,826       164,597  

  Treasury stock, at cost (569,079 and 509,079 shares, respectively)      (13,905)      (12,534) 

  Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (32,510)      (36,988) 

Total stockholders' equity     140,863       127,231  

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,574,728   $1,477,460  
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

     2024     2023     2022 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:      

Net income $12,664   $14,546   $13,626  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash      
equivalents provided by operating activities:      

Provision for credit losses 1,052   1,105   552  
Foreclosed asset valuation losses  -   -   64  
Depreciation 1,172   1,098   1,106  
Net amortization of securities premiums 1,859   2,160   3,019  
Change in fair value of equity securities (59)  (70)  (97) 
Originations of loans held-for-sale (26,911)  (21,310)  (39,073) 
Proceeds from sales of loans held-for-sale 27,821   21,352   41,875  
Net gains on sales of mortgage loans (772)  (611)  (969) 
Income on bank owned life insurance (633)  (585)  (547) 
Gain on death benefits from bank owned life insurance (477)  -  (33) 
Deferred income tax expense 76   292   115  
Stock-based compensation expense 16   16   25  
Restricted stock expense 274   280   348  
Net loss on the sales and calls of AFS securities 111   185   246  
Net gain on the sales of foreclosed assets (8)  (43)  (262) 
Change in mortgage servicing rights 437  (67)  (1,208) 
Net change in:      

Other assets (4,213)  (6,507)  (270) 
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities (261)   5,796   1,463  

Net cash provided by operating activities $12,148    $17,637    $19,980  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:      

Net change in interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits 77   1,547   6,140  
Proceeds from sales of AFS securities 4,857   13,501   10,348  
Proceeds from maturities, call, and paydowns of AFS securities 32,077   25,707   45,029  
Proceeds from maturities, call, and paydowns of HTM securities 356   510   345  
Purchases of AFS securities (44,075)  (9,604)  (64,023) 
Purchases of bank owned life insurance -   -   (930) 
Proceeds from death benefits of bank owned life insurance 1,295  -  662  
Purchase of marketable equity securities, net (1,815)  (1,703)  (1,581) 
Loan originations and principal collections, net (32,327)  (119,588)  (109,201) 
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets 76   733   237  
Purchases of premises and equipment, net (772)  (1,025)  (1,573) 

Net cash used in investing activities (40,251)   (89,922)   (114,547) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:      

Net change in deposits 43,146   62,843   59,263  
Net change in securities sold under agreements to repurchase (16,537)  (4,744)  1,189  
Cash dividends paid (2,529)  (2,288)  (1,932) 
Net change in federal funds purchased 4,651   1,153   (533) 
Purchase of treasury stock (2,103)  (1,371)  (1,532) 
Stock private placement 4,800  -  - 
Proceeds from FHLB and other borrowings 48,413   64,441   18,950  
Payments on FHLB and other borrowings (33,456)  (45,853)  (28,660) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 46,385    74,181    46,745  
Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,282   1,896   (47,822) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 45,718    43,822    91,644  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $64,000    $45,718    $43,822  

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

ASSETS              2023             2022 
   
Cash and due from banks $22,168       $28,354  
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 20,828        7,975  
Federal funds sold      2,722       7,493  

Total cash and cash equivalents      45,718       43,822  
   

Interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits        4,511          6,058  

Debt securities:   

  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    365,618      391,334  

  Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTM)        3,596          4,076  

Marketable equity securities and other investments        5,718         3,945  

Loans held for sale          990            421  

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of $14,195 and $14,541,   

     respectively   1,069,450      954,426  

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net            -             70  

Premises and equipment, net      17,525        17,598  

Bank owned life insurance       24,644     24,058  

Other assets       36,958      31,652  

Total assets $1,574,728  $1,477,460  

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

   

Liabilities:   

  Deposits:   

     Noninterest-bearing $256,205   $276,055  
     Interest-bearing    1,101,352     1,018,652  

Total deposits    1,357,557     1,294,707  

  Federal funds purchased        1,153               -  

  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase     31,554  36,298  

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and other borrowings      25,954         7,366  
  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,647       11,858  

Total liabilities  1,433,865     1,350,229  

   

Stockholders' equity:   

Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -             -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,080,304 and 4,071,494 shares issued, respectively)        1,020         1,018  
  Additional paid-in capital      11,432       11,138  

  Retained earnings     174,826       164,597  

  Treasury stock, at cost (569,079 and 509,079 shares, respectively)      (13,905)      (12,534) 

  Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (32,510)      (36,988) 

Total stockholders' equity     140,863       127,231  

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,574,728   $1,477,460  
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

     2024     2023     2022 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:      

Net income $12,664   $14,546   $13,626  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash      
equivalents provided by operating activities:      

Provision for credit losses 1,052   1,105   552  
Foreclosed asset valuation losses  -   -   64  
Depreciation 1,172   1,098   1,106  
Net amortization of securities premiums 1,859   2,160   3,019  
Change in fair value of equity securities (59)  (70)  (97) 
Originations of loans held-for-sale (26,911)  (21,310)  (39,073) 
Proceeds from sales of loans held-for-sale 27,821   21,352   41,875  
Net gains on sales of mortgage loans (772)  (611)  (969) 
Income on bank owned life insurance (633)  (585)  (547) 
Gain on death benefits from bank owned life insurance (477)  -  (33) 
Deferred income tax expense 76   292   115  
Stock-based compensation expense 16   16   25  
Restricted stock expense 274   280   348  
Net loss on the sales and calls of AFS securities 111   185   246  
Net gain on the sales of foreclosed assets (8)  (43)  (262) 
Change in mortgage servicing rights 437  (67)  (1,208) 
Net change in:      

Other assets (4,213)  (6,507)  (270) 
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities (261)   5,796   1,463  

Net cash provided by operating activities $12,148    $17,637    $19,980  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:      

Net change in interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits 77   1,547   6,140  
Proceeds from sales of AFS securities 4,857   13,501   10,348  
Proceeds from maturities, call, and paydowns of AFS securities 32,077   25,707   45,029  
Proceeds from maturities, call, and paydowns of HTM securities 356   510   345  
Purchases of AFS securities (44,075)  (9,604)  (64,023) 
Purchases of bank owned life insurance -   -   (930) 
Proceeds from death benefits of bank owned life insurance 1,295  -  662  
Purchase of marketable equity securities, net (1,815)  (1,703)  (1,581) 
Loan originations and principal collections, net (32,327)  (119,588)  (109,201) 
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets 76   733   237  
Purchases of premises and equipment, net (772)  (1,025)  (1,573) 

Net cash used in investing activities (40,251)   (89,922)   (114,547) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:      

Net change in deposits 43,146   62,843   59,263  
Net change in securities sold under agreements to repurchase (16,537)  (4,744)  1,189  
Cash dividends paid (2,529)  (2,288)  (1,932) 
Net change in federal funds purchased 4,651   1,153   (533) 
Purchase of treasury stock (2,103)  (1,371)  (1,532) 
Stock private placement 4,800  -  - 
Proceeds from FHLB and other borrowings 48,413   64,441   18,950  
Payments on FHLB and other borrowings (33,456)  (45,853)  (28,660) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 46,385    74,181    46,745  
Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,282   1,896   (47,822) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 45,718    43,822    91,644  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $64,000    $45,718    $43,822  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

  2024    2023    2022  
      

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW      
INFORMATION:      

Cash paid for:      
Interest $30,840    $19,940    $6,505  

      
Taxes $4,639    $3,600    $2,882  

      
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH      
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:      

Foreclosed assets acquired in settlement of loans $68    $620    $70  

 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

ASSETS              2023             2022 
   
Cash and due from banks $22,168       $28,354  
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 20,828        7,975  
Federal funds sold      2,722       7,493  

Total cash and cash equivalents      45,718       43,822  
   

Interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits        4,511          6,058  

Debt securities:   

  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    365,618      391,334  

  Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTM)        3,596          4,076  

Marketable equity securities and other investments        5,718         3,945  

Loans held for sale          990            421  

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of $14,195 and $14,541,   

     respectively   1,069,450      954,426  

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net            -             70  

Premises and equipment, net      17,525        17,598  

Bank owned life insurance       24,644     24,058  

Other assets       36,958      31,652  

Total assets $1,574,728  $1,477,460  

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

   

Liabilities:   

  Deposits:   

     Noninterest-bearing $256,205   $276,055  
     Interest-bearing    1,101,352     1,018,652  

Total deposits    1,357,557     1,294,707  

  Federal funds purchased        1,153               -  

  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase     31,554  36,298  

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and other borrowings      25,954         7,366  
  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,647       11,858  

Total liabilities  1,433,865     1,350,229  

   

Stockholders' equity:   

Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -             -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,080,304 and 4,071,494 shares issued, respectively)        1,020         1,018  
  Additional paid-in capital      11,432       11,138  

  Retained earnings     174,826       164,597  

  Treasury stock, at cost (569,079 and 509,079 shares, respectively)      (13,905)      (12,534) 

  Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (32,510)      (36,988) 

Total stockholders' equity     140,863       127,231  

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,574,728   $1,477,460  

 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(000s omitted except share data) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

ASSETS              2023             2022 
   
Cash and due from banks $22,168       $28,354  
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 20,828        7,975  
Federal funds sold      2,722       7,493  

Total cash and cash equivalents      45,718       43,822  
   

Interest-bearing deposits in banks - term deposits        4,511          6,058  

Debt securities:   

  Debt securities available-for-sale (AFS)    365,618      391,334  

  Debt securities held-to-maturity (HTM)        3,596          4,076  

Marketable equity securities and other investments        5,718         3,945  

Loans held for sale          990            421  

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses of $14,195 and $14,541,   

     respectively   1,069,450      954,426  

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net            -             70  

Premises and equipment, net      17,525        17,598  

Bank owned life insurance       24,644     24,058  

Other assets       36,958      31,652  

Total assets $1,574,728  $1,477,460  

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

   

Liabilities:   

  Deposits:   

     Noninterest-bearing $256,205   $276,055  
     Interest-bearing    1,101,352     1,018,652  

Total deposits    1,357,557     1,294,707  

  Federal funds purchased        1,153               -  

  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase     31,554  36,298  

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and other borrowings      25,954         7,366  
  Accrued interest payable and other liabilities      17,647       11,858  

Total liabilities  1,433,865     1,350,229  

   

Stockholders' equity:   

Preferred stock (no par value; authorized 500,000 shares)           -             -  

  Common stock ($.25 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;   

     4,080,304 and 4,071,494 shares issued, respectively)        1,020         1,018  
  Additional paid-in capital      11,432       11,138  

  Retained earnings     174,826       164,597  

  Treasury stock, at cost (569,079 and 509,079 shares, respectively)      (13,905)      (12,534) 

  Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (32,510)      (36,988) 

Total stockholders' equity     140,863       127,231  

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,574,728   $1,477,460  
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

(1)  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The accounting and reporting principles of Foresight Financial Group, Inc. (Company) and its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries (Banks) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
and to general practices within the banking industry. The following is a description of the more significant 
accounting policies: 

(a) Nature of Operations 
 
The Company provides a variety of banking services to individuals and businesses through its facilities 
in the Rockford, Freeport, German Valley, Davis, Lena, Winnebago, Pecatonica, Kankakee, Loves Park, 
Machesney Park, Belvidere, and Herscher, Illinois areas. Its primary deposit products are demand 
deposits and certificates of deposit and its primary lending products are agriculture, agribusiness, 
commercial, real estate, and installment loans. 
 

(b) Basis of Consolidation 
 
The financial statements include the accounts and results of operations of the Company and its wholly- 
owned subsidiaries: German-American State Bank (German), State Bank of Davis (Davis), State Bank 
(Freeport), Northwest Bank of Rockford (Northwest), Lena State Bank (Lena), and State Bank of 
Herscher (Herscher) (collectively the “Banks”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. 

(c) Subsequent Events 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through March 10, 2025, 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.  On October 24, 2024, the 
Company announced that each of its six bank brands will be consolidating its six bank charters into one 
with an expected legal day one of May 1, 2025.  

(d) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The allowance for credit losses, deferred tax 
assets, fair values of securities, and financial instruments are particularly susceptible to change in the 
near-term.  

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from 
banks, interest-bearing deposits in banks, and federal funds sold, all of which generally mature within 
ninety days.   

(f) Interest-bearing Deposits in Banks 
 
Interest-bearing deposits in banks are comprised of liquid non-maturing deposits but also include some 
balances in time deposits with the maturity being the determining factor for inclusion in cash and cash 
equivalents with the non-maturing interest-bearing deposits. Interest-bearing deposits in banks are 
carried at cost.    
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(1)  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The accounting and reporting principles of Foresight Financial Group, Inc. (Company) and its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries (Banks) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
and to general practices within the banking industry. The following is a description of the more significant 
accounting policies: 

(a) Nature of Operations 
 
The Company provides a variety of banking services to individuals and businesses through its facilities 
in the Rockford, Freeport, German Valley, Davis, Lena, Winnebago, Pecatonica, Kankakee, Loves Park, 
Machesney Park, Belvidere, and Herscher, Illinois areas. Its primary deposit products are demand 
deposits and certificates of deposit and its primary lending products are agriculture, agribusiness, 
commercial, real estate, and installment loans. 
 

(b) Basis of Consolidation 
 
The financial statements include the accounts and results of operations of the Company and its wholly- 
owned subsidiaries: German-American State Bank (German), State Bank of Davis (Davis), State Bank 
(Freeport), Northwest Bank of Rockford (Northwest), Lena State Bank (Lena), and State Bank of 
Herscher (Herscher) (collectively the “Banks”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. 

(c) Subsequent Events 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through March 10, 2025, 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.  On October 24, 2024, the 
Company announced that each of its six bank brands will be consolidating its six bank charters into one 
with an expected legal day one of May 1, 2025.  

(d) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The allowance for credit losses, deferred tax 
assets, fair values of securities, and financial instruments are particularly susceptible to change in the 
near-term.  

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from 
banks, interest-bearing deposits in banks, and federal funds sold, all of which generally mature within 
ninety days.   

(f) Interest-bearing Deposits in Banks 
 
Interest-bearing deposits in banks are comprised of liquid non-maturing deposits but also include some 
balances in time deposits with the maturity being the determining factor for inclusion in cash and cash 
equivalents with the non-maturing interest-bearing deposits. Interest-bearing deposits in banks are 
carried at cost.    
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(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
(g) Debt Securities 

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as 
held to maturity (HTM) and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as HTM are classified 
as available for sale (AFS) and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses excluded from 
earnings and reported in other comprehensive income or loss. Amortization of premiums and accretion 
of discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method. Premiums that exceed the 
amount repayable by the issuer at the next call date are amortized to the next call date. Other 
premiums and discounts are amortized (accreted) over the estimated lives of the securities. Gains and 
losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific-
identification method. 

Effective January 1, 2023, the Company uses a current expected credit loss ("CECL") model to estimate 
the allowance for credit losses on securities held to maturity. The CECL model considers historical loss 
rates and other qualitative adjustments, as well as a new forward-looking component that considers 
reasonable and supportable forecasts over the expected life.    

Management believes the Company will collect all amounts owed on securities held to maturity which 
are issued by highly rated municipalities or local municipalities with which the Company holds significant 
banking relationships. Management evaluates municipal securities held to maturity using a probability 
of default method. The probability of default method estimates the probability a security with a certain 
credit rating or issuer characteristics will default during its remaining contractual term (probability of 
default) and how much loss is expected to be incurred if a security defaults (loss given default rate).  
The Company obtains information from our historical loss rate to estimate the probability of default for 
each credit rating based on the remaining term of the security and the loss given default rate with the 
exception of certain immaterial held to maturity securities.   

The past due status of each security is based on the contractual terms of the security. The accrual of 
interest on a security is discontinued when the security becomes 90 days delinquent or whenever 
management believes the issuer will be unable to make payments as they become due. When 
securities are placed on nonaccrual status, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed against interest 
income. The Company excludes accrued interest receivable from the amortized cost basis of securities 
held to maturity when estimating credit losses and when presenting required disclosures in the financial 
statements. There was $6 and $6 of accrued interest receivable on held to maturity securities as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The Company conducts periodic reviews of available-for-sale securities with declines in fair value below 
their cost to evaluate for potential impairment. In evaluating available-for-sale securities for potential 
impairment, management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has 
been less than amortized cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and 
(3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time 
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. If the Company determines that it is more 
likely than not that it will sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the Company will 
record an allowance for credit losses related to securities available-for-sale with an offsetting entry to 
the provision for credit losses on securities on the statement of income. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20

2024 Annual Report

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
(h) Marketable Equity Securities and Other Investments 

Marketable equity securities have a readily determinable fair value and are measured at fair value with 
changes in fair value reported in net income. Gains and losses on the sale of marketable equity 
securities are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific-identification method. 

Other investments include equity securities without a readily determinable fair value which consists 
primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock and a participating interest in an energy LLC. The 
Company has elected to account for equity securities without readily determinable fair values using the 
alternative measurement method. Under this method, those securities are carried at cost, minus 
impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly 
transactions for the identical or a similar investment. The Company is required to hold FHLB stock as a 
member of the FHLB and transfer of the stock is substantially restricted. The FHLB stock is pledged as 
collateral for outstanding FHLB advances. FHLB stock is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. 
 

(i) Loans Held for Sale 

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or market 
in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges 
to income. 

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights retained by the Company. The 
carrying value of mortgage loans sold is reduced by the cost allocated to the associated mortgage 
servicing rights. Realized gains or losses on sales of mortgage loans are recognized based on the 
difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related mortgage loans sold.  

(j) Loans 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or 
payoff; generally, are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for purchase 
premiums or discounts, charge-offs, and an allowance for credit losses. Interest on loans is accrued 
daily based on the unpaid principal balance.  

A loan is considered to be delinquent when payments have not been made according to contractual 
terms, typically evidenced by nonpayment of a monthly installment by the due date. The accrual of 
interest on a loan is generally discontinued when the loan becomes 90 days delinquent unless the credit 
is well-secured and in the process of collection. Credit card loans and other personal loans are typically 
charged off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. Generally, 
interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual status or charged off is 
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash basis or cost-
recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all 
principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably 
assured. 

Loan-origination fees and direct origination costs are generally recognized as income or expense when 
received or incurred since capitalization of these fees and costs would not have a significant impact on 
the financial statements.  
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(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
(h) Marketable Equity Securities and Other Investments 

Marketable equity securities have a readily determinable fair value and are measured at fair value with 
changes in fair value reported in net income. Gains and losses on the sale of marketable equity 
securities are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific-identification method. 

Other investments include equity securities without a readily determinable fair value which consists 
primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock and a participating interest in an energy LLC. The 
Company has elected to account for equity securities without readily determinable fair values using the 
alternative measurement method. Under this method, those securities are carried at cost, minus 
impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly 
transactions for the identical or a similar investment. The Company is required to hold FHLB stock as a 
member of the FHLB and transfer of the stock is substantially restricted. The FHLB stock is pledged as 
collateral for outstanding FHLB advances. FHLB stock is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. 
 

(i) Loans Held for Sale 

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or market 
in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges 
to income. 

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights retained by the Company. The 
carrying value of mortgage loans sold is reduced by the cost allocated to the associated mortgage 
servicing rights. Realized gains or losses on sales of mortgage loans are recognized based on the 
difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related mortgage loans sold.  

(j) Loans 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or 
payoff; generally, are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for purchase 
premiums or discounts, charge-offs, and an allowance for credit losses. Interest on loans is accrued 
daily based on the unpaid principal balance.  

A loan is considered to be delinquent when payments have not been made according to contractual 
terms, typically evidenced by nonpayment of a monthly installment by the due date. The accrual of 
interest on a loan is generally discontinued when the loan becomes 90 days delinquent unless the credit 
is well-secured and in the process of collection. Credit card loans and other personal loans are typically 
charged off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. Generally, 
interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual status or charged off is 
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash basis or cost-
recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all 
principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably 
assured. 

Loan-origination fees and direct origination costs are generally recognized as income or expense when 
received or incurred since capitalization of these fees and costs would not have a significant impact on 
the financial statements.  
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(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(k) Allowance for Credit Losses and Unfunded Commitments 

The allowance for credit losses (ACL) on loans is a valuation allowance that is deducted from the loans' 
amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected on the Company's loan 
portfolio. The ACL on loans is established through provisions for credit losses charged against earnings. 
When available information confirms that specific loans, or portions thereof, are uncollectible, these 
amounts are charged against the ACL on loans, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the 
ACL on loans. 

Effective January 1, 2023, the Company uses a current expected credit loss ("CECL") model to estimate 
the ACL on loans. The CECL model considers historical loss rates and other qualitative adjustments, 
as well as a new forward-looking component that considers reasonable and supportable forecasts over 
the expected life of each loan. To develop the ACL on loans estimate under the CECL model, the 
Company segments the loan portfolio into loan pools based on loan type and similar credit risk 
elements; performs an individual evaluation of certain collateral dependent and other credit-
deteriorated loans; calculates the historical loss rates for the segmented loan pools; applies the loss 
rates over the calculated life of the collectively evaluated loan pools; adjusts for forecasted macro-level 
economic conditions and other anticipated changes in credit quality; and determines qualitative 
adjustments based on factors and conditions unique to the Company's loan portfolio. 

Management considers the following when assessing the risk in the loan portfolio segments: 

• Residential real estate loans are affected by the local residential real estate market, the local 
economy, and, for variable rate mortgages, movement in indices tied to these loans. At the time 
of origination, the Company evaluates the borrower's repayment ability through a review of debt-
to-income and credit scores. Appraisals are generally obtained to support the loan amount. 
Financial information is obtained from the borrowers and/or the individual project to evaluate 
sufficiency of cash flows to service debt at the time of origination. 
 

• Agricultural and commercial real estate loans are dependent on the industries tied to these 
loans. Agricultural real estate loans are primarily for land acquisition. Commercial real estate 
loans are primarily secured by office and industrial buildings, warehouses, retail shopping 
facilities and various special purpose properties, including hotels and restaurants. Financial 
information is obtained from the borrowers and/or the individual project to evaluate sufficiency 
of cash flows to service debt; and is periodically updated during the life of the loan. Loan 
performance may be adversely affected by factors impacting the general economy or conditions 
specific to the real estate market, such as geographic location and/or property type. 
 

• Commercial and agricultural loans are primarily for working capital, physical asset expansion, 
asset acquisition loans and other. These loans are made based primarily on historical and 
projected cash flow of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the 
borrower. The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not behave as forecasted and collateral 
securing loans may fluctuate in value due to economic or individual performance factors. 
Financial information is obtained from the borrowers to evaluate sufficiency of cash flows to 
service debt and is periodically updated during the life of the loan. 
 

• Consumer and other loans may take the form of installment loans, demand loans, or single 
payment loans and are extended to individuals for household, family, and other personal 
expenditures. At the time of origination, the Company evaluates the borrower's repayment ability 
through a review of debt-to-income and credit score. 

Under the CECL model, loans that do not share similar risk characteristics with loans in their respective 
pools are individually evaluated for expected credit losses and are excluded from the collectively 
evaluated loan credit loss estimates.  
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(k) Allowance for Credit Losses and Unfunded Commitments (continued) 

Management evaluates all collectively evaluated loan pools using the weighted average remaining life 
("remaining life") methodology. The remaining life methodology applies calculated quarterly net loss 
rates to collectively evaluated loan pools on a periodic basis based on the estimated remaining life of 
each pool. The estimated losses under the remaining life methodology are then adjusted for qualitative 
factors deemed appropriate by management. 

The estimated remaining life of each pool is determined using quarterly, pool-based attrition 
measurements using the Company's loan-level historical data. The Company's historical call report 
data is utilized for historical loss rate calculations, and the lookback period for each collectively 
evaluated loan pool is determined by management based upon the estimated remaining life of the pool. 
Forecasted historical loss rates are calculated using the Company's historical data based on the 
lookback and forecast period inputs by management.  

The quantitative analysis described above is supplemented with other qualitative factors based on the 
risks present for each collectively evaluated loan pool. These qualitative factors include: levels of and 
trends in delinquencies and nonaccrual loans; levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends 
in volume and terms of loans; effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other 
changes in lending policies, procedures, and practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending 
management and other relevant staff; national and local economic trends and conditions; industry 
conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentrations. 

In addition to the ACL on loans, the Company maintains a reserve for unfunded loan commitments at 
a level that management believes is adequate to absorb estimated probable credit losses over the 
contractual terms of the Company’s noncancellable loan commitments. The reserve for unfunded loan 
commitments, which is included in accrued interest payable and other liabilities on the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets, is established through provisions for credit losses charged against 
earnings.  

Unfunded loan commitments are segmented into the same pools used for estimating the ACL on loans. 
Estimated credit losses on unfunded loan commitments are based on the same methodology, inputs, 
and assumptions used to estimate credit losses on collectively evaluated loans, adjusted for estimated 
funding probabilities. The estimated funding probabilities represent management's estimate of the 
amount of the current unfunded loan commitment that will be funded over the remaining contractual life 
of the commitment and is based on historical data. 

The Company may modify loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty and grant certain 
concessions that include principal forgiveness, a term extension, an other-than-insignificant payment 
delay, an interest rate reduction, or a combination of these concessions. An assessment of whether the 
borrower is experiencing financial difficulty is made at the time of the loan modification. 

Upon the Company's determination that a modified loan (or portion of a loan) has subsequently been 
deemed uncollectible, the loan (or portion of the loan) is written off. Therefore, the amortized cost basis 
of the loan is reduced by the uncollectible amount and the ACL is adjusted by the same amount.  

(l) Loan Commitments 
 

The Company enters into off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend 
credit and letters of credit issued to meet customer-financing needs. Loan commitments are recorded 
when they are funded. Standby or performance letters of credit are considered financial guarantees in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Standards and are recorded at fair value if material.    
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(k) Allowance for Credit Losses and Unfunded Commitments (continued) 

Management evaluates all collectively evaluated loan pools using the weighted average remaining life 
("remaining life") methodology. The remaining life methodology applies calculated quarterly net loss 
rates to collectively evaluated loan pools on a periodic basis based on the estimated remaining life of 
each pool. The estimated losses under the remaining life methodology are then adjusted for qualitative 
factors deemed appropriate by management. 

The estimated remaining life of each pool is determined using quarterly, pool-based attrition 
measurements using the Company's loan-level historical data. The Company's historical call report 
data is utilized for historical loss rate calculations, and the lookback period for each collectively 
evaluated loan pool is determined by management based upon the estimated remaining life of the pool. 
Forecasted historical loss rates are calculated using the Company's historical data based on the 
lookback and forecast period inputs by management.  

The quantitative analysis described above is supplemented with other qualitative factors based on the 
risks present for each collectively evaluated loan pool. These qualitative factors include: levels of and 
trends in delinquencies and nonaccrual loans; levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends 
in volume and terms of loans; effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other 
changes in lending policies, procedures, and practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending 
management and other relevant staff; national and local economic trends and conditions; industry 
conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentrations. 

In addition to the ACL on loans, the Company maintains a reserve for unfunded loan commitments at 
a level that management believes is adequate to absorb estimated probable credit losses over the 
contractual terms of the Company’s noncancellable loan commitments. The reserve for unfunded loan 
commitments, which is included in accrued interest payable and other liabilities on the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets, is established through provisions for credit losses charged against 
earnings.  

Unfunded loan commitments are segmented into the same pools used for estimating the ACL on loans. 
Estimated credit losses on unfunded loan commitments are based on the same methodology, inputs, 
and assumptions used to estimate credit losses on collectively evaluated loans, adjusted for estimated 
funding probabilities. The estimated funding probabilities represent management's estimate of the 
amount of the current unfunded loan commitment that will be funded over the remaining contractual life 
of the commitment and is based on historical data. 

The Company may modify loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty and grant certain 
concessions that include principal forgiveness, a term extension, an other-than-insignificant payment 
delay, an interest rate reduction, or a combination of these concessions. An assessment of whether the 
borrower is experiencing financial difficulty is made at the time of the loan modification. 

Upon the Company's determination that a modified loan (or portion of a loan) has subsequently been 
deemed uncollectible, the loan (or portion of the loan) is written off. Therefore, the amortized cost basis 
of the loan is reduced by the uncollectible amount and the ACL is adjusted by the same amount.  

(l) Loan Commitments 
 

The Company enters into off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend 
credit and letters of credit issued to meet customer-financing needs. Loan commitments are recorded 
when they are funded. Standby or performance letters of credit are considered financial guarantees in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Standards and are recorded at fair value if material.    
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(m) Loan Servicing  

The Company services mortgage loans it sells to third-party institutions. Servicing loans includes 
collecting monthly principal and interest payments from borrowers, passing such payments through 
to the third-party investors, and maintaining escrow accounts for taxes and insurance. When 
necessary, the Company also performs collection functions for delinquent loan payments, handles 
loan foreclosure proceedings, and disposes of foreclosed property. The Company generally earns a 
servicing fee of 25 basis points on the outstanding loan balance for performing these services as well 
as fees and interest income from ancillary sources, such as late fees and float. The Company measures 
mortgage servicing rights at fair value at each reporting date and reports changes in fair value of 
servicing assets in earnings in the period in which changes occur. 

(n) Rate Lock Commitments 

Commitments to fund mortgage loans (interest-rate lock) to be sold into the secondary market and 
mandatory delivery forward commitments for the future delivery of these mortgage loans are accounted 
for as derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting. The fair values of these mortgage derivatives are 
estimated based on the net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loans and on 
changes in mortgage interest rates from the date of the commitments. Changes in fair values on these 
derivatives are included in net gains on sales of loans. The Company has deemed the effect of these 
derivatives to be immaterial to the financial statements, and, accordingly, has elected not to record fair 
values associated with these derivatives. 

(o) Foreclosed Assets and Other Real Estate Owned 

Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less estimated 
cost of disposal when acquired. Subsequent to foreclosure and transfer to other real estate owned, 
valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying 
amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenues and expenses from operations and changes in the 
valuation allowance are included in net expenses from foreclosed assets and other real estate owned. 

(p) Premises and Equipment 

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, based on the estimated 
useful lives of the assets. Depreciation is generally computed on the straight-line method over estimated 
useful lives ranging from 3 to 40 years as indicated below: 

3 – 5 Years           Technology equipment (computers, copiers, etc.), company vehicles 
5 – 10 Years        Furnishings, building infrastructure and major repairs, security technology 
10 – 20 Years      Remodeling / updates of existing facilities, parking lots  
20 – 40 Years      Major facility renovations, building expansions, new facilities 

(q) Bank-Owned Life Insurance 

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key employees and directors. Bank-
owned life insurance is recorded at its cash surrender value, or the amount that could be realized upon 
immediate liquidation. 
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(r) Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located in the area and communities noted above. 
Note 3 details the type of securities in which the Company invests. Note 4 details the types of lending in 
which the Company engages. The Company does not have any significant concentrations with any one 
industry or customer. 

(s) Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

The core revenue recognition principle requires the Company to recognize revenue to depict the 
transfer of services or products to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for those services or products recognized as 
performance obligations are satisfied. The guidance includes a five-step model to apply to revenue 
recognition, consisting of the following: (1) identify the contract with a customer; (2) identify the 
performance obligations within the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the 
transaction price to the performance obligations within the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when 
the performance obligations are satisfied. 

The Company generally fully satisfies its performance obligations on its contracts with customers 
as services are rendered and the transaction prices are typically fixed; charged either on a periodic 
basis or based on activity. Since performance obligations are satisfied as services are rendered and 
the transaction prices are fixed, there is little judgment involved in applying revenue recognition that 
significantly affects the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with 
customers. 

The following significant revenue-generating transactions are within the scope of revenue recognition, 
which are presented in the statements of income as components of noninterest income: 

Customer service fees – The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for transaction-
based, account maintenance, and overdraft services. Transaction-based fees, such as statement 
rendering and ACH fees, are recognized at the time the transaction is executed as that is the point in 
time the Company fulfills the customer’s request. Account maintenance fees, which relate primarily 
to monthly service charges and maintenance fees, are earned over the course of a month, 
representing the period over which the Company satisfies the performance obligation. Overdraft fees 
are recognized at the point in time that the overdraft occurs as this corresponds with the Company’s 
performance obligation. 

Interchange fees – Customers use a bank-issued debit card to purchase goods and services, and the 
Company earns interchange fees on those transactions, typically a percentage of the sale amount of 
the transaction. The Company is considered an agent with respect to these transactions. Interchange 
fee payments received included in other noninterest income, net of related expense, are recognized 
as income daily, concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the cardholder 
through the payment networks. There are no contingent debit card interchange fees recorded by the 
Company that could be subject to a claw-back in future periods. 

Trust fees – The Company earns trust fees, included in other noninterest income, from its contracts 
with trust customers for providing investment management and/or transaction-based services on  
their accounts. These fees are primarily earned over time as the Company provides the contracted 
monthly or quarterly services and are assessed based on the total investable assets of the customer’s 
trust account. A signed contract between the Company and the customer is maintained for all customer 
trust accounts with payment terms identified. There are no contingent incentive fees recorded by the 
Company that could be subject to a claw-back in future periods. 
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(r) Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located in the area and communities noted above. 
Note 3 details the type of securities in which the Company invests. Note 4 details the types of lending in 
which the Company engages. The Company does not have any significant concentrations with any one 
industry or customer. 

(s) Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

The core revenue recognition principle requires the Company to recognize revenue to depict the 
transfer of services or products to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for those services or products recognized as 
performance obligations are satisfied. The guidance includes a five-step model to apply to revenue 
recognition, consisting of the following: (1) identify the contract with a customer; (2) identify the 
performance obligations within the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the 
transaction price to the performance obligations within the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when 
the performance obligations are satisfied. 

The Company generally fully satisfies its performance obligations on its contracts with customers 
as services are rendered and the transaction prices are typically fixed; charged either on a periodic 
basis or based on activity. Since performance obligations are satisfied as services are rendered and 
the transaction prices are fixed, there is little judgment involved in applying revenue recognition that 
significantly affects the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with 
customers. 

The following significant revenue-generating transactions are within the scope of revenue recognition, 
which are presented in the statements of income as components of noninterest income: 

Customer service fees – The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for transaction-
based, account maintenance, and overdraft services. Transaction-based fees, such as statement 
rendering and ACH fees, are recognized at the time the transaction is executed as that is the point in 
time the Company fulfills the customer’s request. Account maintenance fees, which relate primarily 
to monthly service charges and maintenance fees, are earned over the course of a month, 
representing the period over which the Company satisfies the performance obligation. Overdraft fees 
are recognized at the point in time that the overdraft occurs as this corresponds with the Company’s 
performance obligation. 

Interchange fees – Customers use a bank-issued debit card to purchase goods and services, and the 
Company earns interchange fees on those transactions, typically a percentage of the sale amount of 
the transaction. The Company is considered an agent with respect to these transactions. Interchange 
fee payments received included in other noninterest income, net of related expense, are recognized 
as income daily, concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the cardholder 
through the payment networks. There are no contingent debit card interchange fees recorded by the 
Company that could be subject to a claw-back in future periods. 

Trust fees – The Company earns trust fees, included in other noninterest income, from its contracts 
with trust customers for providing investment management and/or transaction-based services on  
their accounts. These fees are primarily earned over time as the Company provides the contracted 
monthly or quarterly services and are assessed based on the total investable assets of the customer’s 
trust account. A signed contract between the Company and the customer is maintained for all customer 
trust accounts with payment terms identified. There are no contingent incentive fees recorded by the 
Company that could be subject to a claw-back in future periods. 
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(s) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) 

Insurance commissions – Insurance agency commissions, included in other noninterest income, are 
received from insurance carriers for the agency’s share of commissions from customer premium 
payments. These commissions are recorded into income when checks are received from the insurance 
carriers, and there is no contingent portion associated with these commission checks that may be 
clawed back by the carrier in the future. There may be a short time-lag in recording revenue when cash 
is received instead of recording the revenue when the policy is signed by the customer, but the time lag 
is insignificant and does not impact the revenue recognition process. The Company has evaluated the 
potential amount of premium refunds due to customers when policies are cancelled and has determined 
such amounts are insignificant. 

(t) Income Taxes 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet) method. 
Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the 
temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and 
liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws. The Company files 
consolidated Federal and State income tax returns. 

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company evaluated tax positions taken for filing with the Internal 
Revenue Service and all state jurisdictions in which it operates. The Company believes that income tax 
filing positions will be sustained under examination and does not anticipate any adjustments that would 
result in a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations, or cash 
flows. Accordingly, the Company has not recorded any reserves or related accruals for interest and 
penalties for uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

(u) Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Accounting principles generally require the Company to include in net income recognized revenue, 
expenses, gains and losses. Certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and 
losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of 
the consolidated balance sheets, net of taxes. Such items, along with net income, are components of 
comprehensive income. 

(v) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share (EPS) represent income available to common stockholders divided by the 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects 
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had 
been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance.   
Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options 
and are determined using the treasury stock method. 

(w) Loss Contingencies 
 
Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising from time to time in the ordinary course 
of business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range 
of loss can be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe there are such matters that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(x) Transfers of Financial Assets 

 
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been 
surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have 
been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right to pledge or exchange the 
transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets  
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 
 

(y) Trust Assets 
 
Assets of the trust departments of State Bank and State Bank of Herscher, other than trust cash on 
deposit at the Banks, are not included in these financial statements because they are not assets of the 
Company. 
 

(z) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase 
 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase liabilities represent amounts advanced by various 
customers. Securities are pledged to cover these liabilities, which are not covered by federal deposit 
insurance. 
 

(aa) Stock Compensation Plans 
 
The Company records the cost of stock-based employee compensation using the fair-value method. 
Compensation expense for share-based awards is recorded over the vesting period at the fair value 
of the award at the time of grant. The Company has historically assumed no projected forfeitures on 
its stock based compensation, since forfeitures have not been significant. 
 

(bb) Advertising 
 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 
 

(cc) Operating Segments 
 
While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services, 
operations are managed, and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis.  Discrete 
financial information is not available other than on a Company-wide basis.  Accordingly, all of the 
financial service operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable 
operating segment. See Note 23 for new disclosure related to the new accounting standard.   
 

(dd) Reclassifications 
 
Certain amounts in the 2022 and 2023 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2024 presentation. 
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(1)    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
(x) Transfers of Financial Assets 

 
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been 
surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have 
been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right to pledge or exchange the 
transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets  
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 
 

(y) Trust Assets 
 
Assets of the trust departments of State Bank and State Bank of Herscher, other than trust cash on 
deposit at the Banks, are not included in these financial statements because they are not assets of the 
Company. 
 

(z) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase 
 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase liabilities represent amounts advanced by various 
customers. Securities are pledged to cover these liabilities, which are not covered by federal deposit 
insurance. 
 

(aa) Stock Compensation Plans 
 
The Company records the cost of stock-based employee compensation using the fair-value method. 
Compensation expense for share-based awards is recorded over the vesting period at the fair value 
of the award at the time of grant. The Company has historically assumed no projected forfeitures on 
its stock based compensation, since forfeitures have not been significant. 
 

(bb) Advertising 
 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 
 

(cc) Operating Segments 
 
While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services, 
operations are managed, and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis.  Discrete 
financial information is not available other than on a Company-wide basis.  Accordingly, all of the 
financial service operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable 
operating segment. See Note 23 for new disclosure related to the new accounting standard.   
 

(dd) Reclassifications 
 
Certain amounts in the 2022 and 2023 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2024 presentation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

(ee) New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
ASU No. 2023-07 Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures- 
The amendments in this update improve reportable segment disclosure requirements through 
enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. The amendments clarify circumstances in 
which an entity can disclose multiple measures of profit or loss, provide new segment requirements for 
entities with a single reportable segment and contain other disclosure requirements. The Company 
adopted ASU No. 2023-07 on January 1, 2024, on a prospective basis. The adoption of this standard 
did not have a material impact on the Company’s operating results or financial condition. 
 
ASU No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures- The 
amendments in this update enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax 
disclosures. This update requires the disclosure of specific categories in the rate reconciliation and 
provide additional information for reconciling items that meet a quantitative threshold including 1) the 
amount of income taxes paid disaggregated by federal, state, and foreign taxes; 2) the amount of 
income taxes paid disaggregated by individual jurisdictions in which income taxes paid is equal to or 
greater than five percent of total income taxes paid. The amendments also require entities to disclose 
income from continuing operations before income tax expense disaggregated between domestic and 
foreign and disaggregated by federal, state and foreign. The adoption of this standard is not expected 
to have a material effect on the Company’s operating results or financial condition. 
 
ASU No. 2024-02, Codification Improvements-Amendments to Remove References to the Concepts 
Statements- The amendments to the Codification remove references to various Concepts Statements.  
The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s operating 
results or financial condition.   

(2)  Cash Equivalents and Interest-Bearing Deposits 
Effective March 12, 2021, the Federal Reserve's board of directors approved the final rule reducing 
the required reserve requirement ratios to zero percent, effectively eliminating the requirement to maintain 
reserve balances in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. This reduction in the required 
reserves does not have a defined timeframe and may be revised by the Federal Reserve's board in the 
future. 

In the normal course of business, the Company maintains cash and due from bank balances in accounts 
with correspondent banks. Balances in these accounts may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation’s (FDIC) insured limit of $250. These financial institutions have strong credit ratings and that 
credit risk related to these deposits is not material. 

Interest-bearing deposits consist of certificates of deposit at other financial institutions. Certificates of 
deposit are in denominations of $250 or less and are fully insured by the FDIC. 

Maturities of certificates of deposits at other financial institutions as of December 31, 2024 are as follows: 

 
2025 $3,442  

2026 747  

2027 245  

2028 and thereafter -  

 
 

  $4,434  
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(3) Debt Securities 
The following tables reflect the amortized costs and approximate fair values of securities at December 31: 

 
   Gross  Gross   

Held-to-Maturity   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 
2024 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
State and municipal $3,263    $ -    $(213)   $3,050  

        
        
   Gross  Gross   

Held-to-Maturity   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 
2023 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
State and municipal $3,596    $ -    $(231)   $3,365  

 
   Gross  Gross   

Available-for-Sale   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 
2024 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
U.S. Government sponsored entities $130,397   $11   $(11,109)  $119,299  
   and U.S. agencies        
State and municipal 102,260   18   (11,006)  91,272  
Agency mortgage-backed 182,062   61   (24,310)  157,813  
Corporate debt securities 1,519    42    -    1,561  

        
  $416,238    $132    $(46,425)   $369,945  

        
        

   Gross  Gross   
Available-for-Sale   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 

2023 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
U.S. Government sponsored entities $129,106   $8   $(12,685)  $116,429  

and U.S. agencies        
State and municipal 110,943   130   (9,600)  101,473  
Agency mortgage-backed 169,542  9  (23,390)  146,161 
Corporate debt securities 1,499    56   -   1,555  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  $411,090    $203    $(45,675)   $365,618  
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(3) Debt Securities 
The following tables reflect the amortized costs and approximate fair values of securities at December 31: 

 
   Gross  Gross   

Held-to-Maturity   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 
2024 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
State and municipal $3,263    $ -    $(213)   $3,050  

        
        
   Gross  Gross   

Held-to-Maturity   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 
2023 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
State and municipal $3,596    $ -    $(231)   $3,365  

 
   Gross  Gross   

Available-for-Sale   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 
2024 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
U.S. Government sponsored entities $130,397   $11   $(11,109)  $119,299  
   and U.S. agencies        
State and municipal 102,260   18   (11,006)  91,272  
Agency mortgage-backed 182,062   61   (24,310)  157,813  
Corporate debt securities 1,519    42    -    1,561  

        
  $416,238    $132    $(46,425)   $369,945  

        
        

   Gross  Gross   
Available-for-Sale   Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimated 

2023 Amortized Cost   Gains   Losses   Fair Value 

        
U.S. Government sponsored entities $129,106   $8   $(12,685)  $116,429  

and U.S. agencies        
State and municipal 110,943   130   (9,600)  101,473  
Agency mortgage-backed 169,542  9  (23,390)  146,161 
Corporate debt securities 1,499    56   -   1,555  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  $411,090    $203    $(45,675)   $365,618  
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(3)    Debt Securities (continued) 
For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, proceeds from sales of available-for-sale 
securities amounted to $4,857, $13,501 and $10,348, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses from 
the sales and calls of available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31 are as follows: 

 
 2024  2023  2022 

      
Realized gains $ -   $32   $170  

Realized losses (111)  (217)  (416) 

      

Securities with carrying amounts of approximately $244,667 and $264,449 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by 
law. 

The amortized costs and estimated fair values of securities at December 31, 2024 are shown below by 
contractual maturities, except for U.S. agencies which are shown by contractual maturities or their expected 
call dates if the call dates are considered likely to occur based on present market conditions. Expected 
maturities may differ from contractual maturities on mortgage-backed securities because borrowers may 
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

 
    Estimated 

Held-to-Maturity   Amortized Cost   Fair Value 

     
Due in one year or less  $885   $873  

Due after one year through five years  1,536   1,433  

Due after five years through ten years  842   744  

Due after ten years   -    -  
     

    $3,263    $3,050  
     

    Estimated 
Available-for-Sale   Amortized Cost   Fair Value 

     
Due in one year or less  $23,974   $23,798  
Due after one year through five years  75,855   70,864  

Due after five years through ten years  83,772   74,500  
Due after ten years   50,575    42,970  

  234,176   212,132  

Agency mortgage-backed   182,062    157,813  

    $416,238    $369,945  
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(3)    Debt Securities (continued) 
The following tables show the fair values and unrealized losses aggregated by investment category and 
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 
2024 and 2023: 
 2024 
 Held-to-Maturity 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 
  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 

            
State and municipal $ -   $ -    -    $3,050    $213    9  

            
 2023 
 Held-to-Maturity 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 
  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 

            
State and municipal $480    $18    1    $2,885    $213    9  

 2024 
 Available-for-Sale 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 

  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 
            

U.S. Government sponsored  $10,112   $72   20   $104,252   $11,037   170  

entities and U.S. agencies            
State and municipal 9,966   195   34   73,456   10,811   281  

Agency mortgage-backed 12,463    188   15   124,411    24,122    416  
            

Total $32,541    $455    69    $302,119    $45,970    867  
            

 2023 
 Available-for-Sale 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 

  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 
            

U.S. Government sponsored  $6,893   $32   14   $106,026   $12,653   174  

entities and U.S. agencies            
State and municipal 5,750   319   21   78,245   9,281   293  

Agency mortgage-backed -    -    -    144,681    23,390    428  
            

Total $12,643    $351    35    $328,952    $45,324    895  
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(3)    Debt Securities (continued) 
The following tables show the fair values and unrealized losses aggregated by investment category and 
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 
2024 and 2023: 
 2024 
 Held-to-Maturity 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 
  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 

            
State and municipal $ -   $ -    -    $3,050    $213    9  

            
 2023 
 Held-to-Maturity 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 
  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 

            
State and municipal $480    $18    1    $2,885    $213    9  

 2024 
 Available-for-Sale 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 

  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 
            

U.S. Government sponsored  $10,112   $72   20   $104,252   $11,037   170  

entities and U.S. agencies            
State and municipal 9,966   195   34   73,456   10,811   281  

Agency mortgage-backed 12,463    188   15   124,411    24,122    416  
            

Total $32,541    $455    69    $302,119    $45,970    867  
            

 2023 
 Available-for-Sale 

  Less Than 12 Months   12 Months or Greater 

   Gross      Gross   
 Estimated  Unrealized  Number of  Estimated  Unrealized  Number of 

  Fair Value  Loss  Securities  Fair Value  Loss  Securities 
            

U.S. Government sponsored  $6,893   $32   14   $106,026   $12,653   174  

entities and U.S. agencies            
State and municipal 5,750   319   21   78,245   9,281   293  

Agency mortgage-backed -    -    -    144,681    23,390    428  
            

Total $12,643    $351    35    $328,952    $45,324    895  
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(3)    Debt Securities (continued) 
Unrealized losses on securities have not been recognized into income because the bonds are of high credit 
quality, management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future and the decline in fair value 
is largely due to market interest rate fluctuations and other market conditions. The issuers continue to make 
timely principal and interest payments on the bonds. The fair value is expected to recover as the bonds 
approach their maturity dates. 

Included in mortgage-backed securities are agency issued and government-sponsored enterprise issued 
mortgage-backed securities. Agency-issued securities are generally guaranteed by a U.S. government 
agency, such as the Government National Mortgage Association. Government-sponsored enterprises, such 
as the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or the Federal National Mortgage Association, have an 
implied guarantee by the U.S. government. The municipal bond portfolio consists of highly rated securities 
rated A or better, all have made payments as agreed, and there is no other evidence of significant 
deterioration in the underlying issuers’ financial positions. The Company evaluated whether the unrealized 
losses in the investment portfolio were a result of credit losses or other factors and concluded the unrealized 
losses were the result of other market conditions, primarily changes in interest rates, and therefore no credit 
losses identified. 

(4)    Loans 
The following table presents total loans at December 31, 2024 and 2023 by portfolio segment and class  
of loan: 

 
                       2024                  2023 
      

Commercial  
 

 
 Commercial & industrial  $222,676   $222,760  

 Commercial real estate 323,890   303,056  

 Commercial construction 43,707   51,612  

  Total commercial 590,273    577,428  

Agriculture  
 

 
 Agriculture real estate 181,899   176,878  

 Agriculture production 116,142   112,455  

  Total agriculture 298,041    289,333  

Residential Mortgage  
 

 
 1 - 4 family first lien 107,102   91,567  

 1 - 4 family junior lien 27,436   29,379  

 Residential construction 4,932   5,193  

  Total residential mortgage 139,470    126,139  

Consumer  
 

 
 Auto 58,345   58,199  

 Consumer other 14,942   17,857  

  Total consumer 73,287    76,056  

Other loans and leases 14,548    15,170  

Gross loans 1,115,619   1,084,126  

Allowance for credit losses 14,694   14,195  

Unamortized deferred fees, net 268   481  

Net loans  $1,100,657    $1,069,450  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
The Company’s activity in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
by loan segment is summarized below: 

 
    2024       

    Residential       

 Commercial Agriculture  Mortgage  Consumer  Other   Total 

           
Balance, beginning of period $9,592  $2,887   $807   $668   $241   $14,195  

Provision 438  218   331   24   69   1,080  

Charge-offs 311   36  91   153   67   658  

Recoveries collected 33   2    13    21    8    77  
     Balance, end of period $9,752  $3,071    $1,060    $560    $251    $14,694  

           

    2023       

    Residential       

 Commercial Agriculture  Mortgage  Consumer  Other  Total 

           
Balance, beginning of period  $10,425  $2,396   $966   $667   $87   $14,541  

Cumulative effect of change 
in accounting principal 2,105  264   (149)  80   152   2,452  

Provision 409  227   32   107   58   833  

Charge-offs 4,010   -  63   203   61   4,337  

Recoveries collected 663   -    21    17    5    706  

     Balance, end of period $9,592  $2,887    $807    $668    $241    $14,195  

 
    2022       

    Residential       

 Commercial Agriculture  Mortgage  Consumer  Other  Total 

           
Balance, beginning of period  $7,618  $4,236   $1,797   $269   $65   $13,985  

Provision 2,787  (1,840)  (923)  443   85   552  

Charge-offs 175   -   78   131   67   451  

Recoveries collected 195   -   170    86    4    455  

     Balance, end of period $10,425  $2,396    $966    $667    $87    $14,541  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
The Company’s activity in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
by loan segment is summarized below: 

 
    2024       

    Residential       

 Commercial Agriculture  Mortgage  Consumer  Other   Total 

           
Balance, beginning of period $9,592  $2,887   $807   $668   $241   $14,195  

Provision 438  218   331   24   69   1,080  

Charge-offs 311   36  91   153   67   658  

Recoveries collected 33   2    13    21    8    77  
     Balance, end of period $9,752  $3,071    $1,060    $560    $251    $14,694  

           

    2023       

    Residential       

 Commercial Agriculture  Mortgage  Consumer  Other  Total 

           
Balance, beginning of period  $10,425  $2,396   $966   $667   $87   $14,541  

Cumulative effect of change 
in accounting principal 2,105  264   (149)  80   152   2,452  

Provision 409  227   32   107   58   833  

Charge-offs 4,010   -  63   203   61   4,337  

Recoveries collected 663   -    21    17    5    706  

     Balance, end of period $9,592  $2,887    $807    $668    $241    $14,195  

 
    2022       

    Residential       

 Commercial Agriculture  Mortgage  Consumer  Other  Total 

           
Balance, beginning of period  $7,618  $4,236   $1,797   $269   $65   $13,985  

Provision 2,787  (1,840)  (923)  443   85   552  

Charge-offs 175   -   78   131   67   451  

Recoveries collected 195   -   170    86    4    455  

     Balance, end of period $10,425  $2,396    $966    $667    $87    $14,541  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
Collateral dependent loans individually evaluated for purposes of the allowance for credit losses by collateral 
type were as follows at December 31, 2024 and 2023: 
 
As of December 31, 2024 

 

  
Commercial $15,349 
Commercial Real Estate 10,544 
Agriculture 647 
Agriculture Real Estate 2,417  
Residential Mortgage 1,989  
Residential Construction 1,454 
Consumer 6,348 
  
Total $38,748  

 
As of December 31, 2023  

  
Commercial $10,930 
Agriculture 1,176  
Residential Mortgage 1,168  
Consumer 4,369  
Other 47  
  
Total $17,690  

 

The Company regularly evaluates various attributes of loans to determine the appropriateness of the 
allowance for credit losses. The Company generally monitors credit quality indicators for all loans using the 
following: 

‘Pass’ ratings are assigned to loans with adequate collateral and debt service ability; such that collectability 
of the contractual loan payments is highly probable. 

‘Special Mention’ ratings are assigned to loans where management has some concern that the collateral or 
debt service ability may not be adequate, though the collectability of the contractual loan payments is still 
probable. 

‘Substandard’ ratings are assigned to loans that do not have adequate collateral and / or debt service ability; 
such that collectability of the contractual loan payments is no longer probable. 

‘Doubtful’ ratings are assigned to loans that do not have adequate collateral and / or debt service ability, and 
collectability of the contractual loan payments is unlikely.  

Internally prepared ratings for business loans are updated at least annually. Residential real estate and 
consumer loans are generally evaluated based on whether or not the loan is performing according to the 
contractual terms of the loan as of the balance sheet date. 

Information regarding the loan portfolio by risk classification and origination year for the year ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, follows: 
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
       Revolving   
       Loans  
       Amortized   
 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Prior Cost Basis Total 
Commercial         
  Pass $104,730  $82,800  $132,130  $79,940  $25,896  $73,175  $62,932  $561,603  
  Special Mention 336  150  1,480 -  1,077  1,317  30  4,390  
  Substandard 165  1,110  14,285  1,592  4,072  566  2,490  24,280  
    Total commercial 105,231  84,060  147,895  81,532  31,045  75,058  65,452  590,273  
Agriculture         
  Pass 32,524  43,002  33,091  29,820  19,834  39,911  94,929  293,111  
  Special Mention -  - - - - - - - 
  Substandard -  -  282  248  4,144  36  220 4,930  
    Total agriculture 32,524  43,002  33,373  30,068  23,978  39,947  95,149  298,041  
Residential mortgage         
  Pass 31,789  11,787  22,180  19,823  7,714  16,761  25,191  135,245  
  Special Mention -  -  126  164  132 309  30  761  
  Substandard 1,046  90  389  526  -  455  958  3,464  
    Total residential     
    mortgage 32,835  11,877  22,695  20,513  7,846  17,525  26,179  139,470  
Consumer         
  Pass 24,306  26,321  14,647  5,730  1,406  550  1  72,961  
  Special Mention -  - - - - - - - 
  Substandard -  86  106  110  1  23 - 326  
    Total consumer 24,306  26,407  14,753  5,840  1,407  573  1  73,287  
Other loans and 
leases         
  Pass 1,135  1,783  1,057  4,980  671  4,922  -  14,548  
  Special Mention - - - - - - - - 
  Substandard - - - - - - - - 
    Total other loans  1,135  1,783  1,057  4,980  671  4,922  - 14,548  
    and leases         
Totals $196,031  $167,129  $219,773  $142,933  $64,947  $138,025  $186,781  $1,115,619  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
       Revolving   
       Loans  
       Amortized   
 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Prior Cost Basis Total 
Commercial         
  Pass $104,730  $82,800  $132,130  $79,940  $25,896  $73,175  $62,932  $561,603  
  Special Mention 336  150  1,480 -  1,077  1,317  30  4,390  
  Substandard 165  1,110  14,285  1,592  4,072  566  2,490  24,280  
    Total commercial 105,231  84,060  147,895  81,532  31,045  75,058  65,452  590,273  
Agriculture         
  Pass 32,524  43,002  33,091  29,820  19,834  39,911  94,929  293,111  
  Special Mention -  - - - - - - - 
  Substandard -  -  282  248  4,144  36  220 4,930  
    Total agriculture 32,524  43,002  33,373  30,068  23,978  39,947  95,149  298,041  
Residential mortgage         
  Pass 31,789  11,787  22,180  19,823  7,714  16,761  25,191  135,245  
  Special Mention -  -  126  164  132 309  30  761  
  Substandard 1,046  90  389  526  -  455  958  3,464  
    Total residential     
    mortgage 32,835  11,877  22,695  20,513  7,846  17,525  26,179  139,470  
Consumer         
  Pass 24,306  26,321  14,647  5,730  1,406  550  1  72,961  
  Special Mention -  - - - - - - - 
  Substandard -  86  106  110  1  23 - 326  
    Total consumer 24,306  26,407  14,753  5,840  1,407  573  1  73,287  
Other loans and 
leases         
  Pass 1,135  1,783  1,057  4,980  671  4,922  -  14,548  
  Special Mention - - - - - - - - 
  Substandard - - - - - - - - 
    Total other loans  1,135  1,783  1,057  4,980  671  4,922  - 14,548  
    and leases         
Totals $196,031  $167,129  $219,773  $142,933  $64,947  $138,025  $186,781  $1,115,619  
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(4)  Loans (continued) 
       Revolving   
       Loans  
       Amortized   
 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Prior Cost Basis Total 
Commercial         
  Pass $86,334  $172,051  $99,760  $30,821  $20,024  $80,145  $61,303  $550,438  
  Special Mention 176  10,463  - 1,939  71  2,440  130  15,219  
  Substandard 1,178  761  1,002  4,397  553  429  3,451  11,771  
    Total commercial 87,688  183,275  100,762  37,157  20,648  83,014  64,884  577,428  
Agriculture         
  Pass 49,112  36,952  32,786  21,128  13,546  35,371  92,497  281,392  
  Special Mention -  - - - -  - - 
  Substandard 258  376  2,179  5,082  -  46  - 7,941  
    Total agriculture 49,370  37,328  34,965  26,210  13,546  35,417  92,497  289,333  
Residential mortgage         
  Pass 20,141  26,416  21,755  9,044  6,082  14,924  25,023  123,385  
  Special Mention -  139  175  62  - 495  83  954  
  Substandard 99  179  554  74  79  748  67  1,800  
    Total residential     
    mortgage 20,240  26,734  22,484  9,180  6,161  16,167  25,173  126,139  
Consumer         
  Pass 37,801  23,139  9,829  2,959  1,742  307  183  75,960  
  Special Mention -  - - - - - - - 
  Substandard 15  48  9  10  14  - - 96  
    Total consumer 37,816  23,187  9,838  2,969  1,756  307  183  76,056  
Other loans and leases         
  Pass 2,650  1,130  5,230  906  13  5,241  -  15,170  
  Special Mention - - - - - - - - 
  Substandard - - - - - - - - 
    Total other loans  2,650  1,130  5,230  906  13  5,241  - 15,170  
    and leases         
Totals $197,764  $271,654  $173,279  $76,422  $42,124  $140,146  $182,737  $1,084,126  

 
The gross charge-offs by loan type and year of origination for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
were as follows: 

     2024         
Current Period Gross Charge-offs 2024  2023  2022  2021  2020  Prior  Total 

Commercial $8   $ 4   $ 126   $99   $2   $72   $311  
Agriculture -  -  36  -  -  -  36 
Residential mortgage -  -  -  -   -  91   91  
Consumer  -  56   51   36   6   4   153  
Other loans and leases 67    -   -   -   -   -   67  

                
Totals  $75    $60    $213    $135    $8    $167    $658  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
     2023         
Current Period Gross Charge-offs 2023  2022  2021  2020  2019  Prior  Total 
Commercial $2   $102   $ -   $965   $1,473   $1,468   $4,010  
Residential mortgage -  -  -  25   -  38   63  
Consumer  -  120   17   20   37   9   203  
Other loans and leases 61    -   -   -   -   -   61  

                
Totals  $63    $222    $17    $1,010    $1,510    $1,515    $4,337  

Loan aging information by class of loans at December 31 follows: 

 
As of December 31, 2024  Greater Than     

  30-89 Days 90 Days Past Total Past  Total 
90 or more days 

past  

  Past Due Due Due Current  Loans due and accruing 

Commercial       
  Commercial & industrial  $1,133  $447  $1,580  $221,096  $222,676  $ -  
  Commercial real estate -  1,849  1,849  322,041  323,890  - 
  Commercial construction - - - 43,707  43,707  - 

 Total commercial 1,133  2,296  3,429  586,844  590,273  -  
Agriculture       
  Agriculture real estate 54  222 276  181,623  181,899  222 
  Agriculture production -  220  220  115,922  116,142  - 

 Total agriculture 54  442  496  297,545  298,041  - 
Residential mortgage       
  1 - 4 family first lien 1,381  487  1,868  105,234  107,102  -  
  1 - 4 family junior lien 453  47 500  26,936  27,436  - 
  Residential construction - - - 4,932  4,932  - 

 Total residential mortgage 1,834  534  2,368  137,102  139,470  -  
Consumer       
  Auto 1,064  235  1,299  57,046  58,345  8  
  Consumer other 280  23  303  14,639  14,942  -  

 Total consumer 1,344  258  1,602  71,685  73,287  8  
Other Loans and Leases -  - - 14,548  14,548  - 
        

 Totals $4,365  $3,530  $7,895  $1,107,724  $1,115,619  $230  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
     2023         
Current Period Gross Charge-offs 2023  2022  2021  2020  2019  Prior  Total 
Commercial $2   $102   $ -   $965   $1,473   $1,468   $4,010  
Residential mortgage -  -  -  25   -  38   63  
Consumer  -  120   17   20   37   9   203  
Other loans and leases 61    -   -   -   -   -   61  

                
Totals  $63    $222    $17    $1,010    $1,510    $1,515    $4,337  

Loan aging information by class of loans at December 31 follows: 

 
As of December 31, 2024  Greater Than     

  30-89 Days 90 Days Past Total Past  Total 
90 or more days 

past  

  Past Due Due Due Current  Loans due and accruing 

Commercial       
  Commercial & industrial  $1,133  $447  $1,580  $221,096  $222,676  $ -  
  Commercial real estate -  1,849  1,849  322,041  323,890  - 
  Commercial construction - - - 43,707  43,707  - 

 Total commercial 1,133  2,296  3,429  586,844  590,273  -  
Agriculture       
  Agriculture real estate 54  222 276  181,623  181,899  222 
  Agriculture production -  220  220  115,922  116,142  - 

 Total agriculture 54  442  496  297,545  298,041  - 
Residential mortgage       
  1 - 4 family first lien 1,381  487  1,868  105,234  107,102  -  
  1 - 4 family junior lien 453  47 500  26,936  27,436  - 
  Residential construction - - - 4,932  4,932  - 

 Total residential mortgage 1,834  534  2,368  137,102  139,470  -  
Consumer       
  Auto 1,064  235  1,299  57,046  58,345  8  
  Consumer other 280  23  303  14,639  14,942  -  

 Total consumer 1,344  258  1,602  71,685  73,287  8  
Other Loans and Leases -  - - 14,548  14,548  - 
        

 Totals $4,365  $3,530  $7,895  $1,107,724  $1,115,619  $230  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
As of December 31, 2023  Greater Than     
  30-89 Days 90 Days Past Total Past  Total 90 or more days past  

  Past Due Due Due Current  Loans due and accruing 

Commercial       
  Commercial & industrial  $432  $121  $553  $222,207  $222,760  $82  
  Commercial real estate 1,563  -  1,563  301,493  303,056  - 
  Commercial construction - - - 51,612  51,612  - 

 Total commercial 1,995  121  2,116  575,312  577,428  82  
Agriculture       
  Agriculture real estate 316  - 316  176,562  176,878  - 
  Agriculture production 151  84  235  112,220  112,455  - 

 Total agriculture 467  84  551  288,782  289,333  - 
Residential mortgage       
  1 - 4 family first lien 859  364  1,223  90,344  91,567  189  
  1 - 4 family junior lien 230  - 230  29,149  29,379  - 
  Residential construction - - - 5,193  5,193  - 

 Total residential mortgage 1,089  364  1,453  124,686  126,139  189  
Consumer       
  Auto 827  35  862  57,337  58,199  25  
  Consumer other 196  7  203  17,654  17,857  6  

 Total consumer 1,023  42  1,065  74,991  76,056  31  
Other Loans and Leases -  - - 15,170  15,170  - 
        

 Totals $4,574  $611  $5,185  $1,078,941  $1,084,126  $302  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
Information regarding nonaccrual loans during the years ended December 31 follows: 

 
  December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 

      

Interest 
Income 

Recognized     

Interest 
Income 

Recognized 

  
Nonaccrual 

loans Total 
During the  
Period on 

Nonaccrual 
loans Total  

During the  
Period on 

  
With No 

ACL 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
Nonaccrual 

Loans  
With No 

ACL 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
Nonaccrual 

Loans  
Commercial       
 Commercial & industrial  $2,088  $9,922  $ -  $44  $5,029  $ -  
 Commercial real estate 1,479  10,479  -  14  2,156  -  
 Commercial construction -  - - -  - - 
    Total commercial 3,567  20,401  -  58  7,185  -  
Agriculture       
 Agriculture real estate 1,036  4,144  -  1,175  4,703  -  
 Agriculture production -  867 11  -  3,180  60  
   Total agriculture 1,036  5,011  11  1,175  7,883  60  
Residential Mortgage       
  1 - 4 family first lien 265  756  2  -  446  -  
  1 - 4 family junior lien 253  293  - 99  137  - 
  Residential construction - 1,455 - - - - 
   Total residential mortgage 518  2,504  -  99  583  -  
Consumer       
 Auto -  297  - -  66  - 
 Consumer other - 29  -  - 26  - 
  Total consumer - 326  - - 92  - 
Other loans and leases - - - - - - 

        
Totals  $5,121  $28,242  $13  $1,332  $15,743  $60  

Occasionally, the Company modifies loans to borrowers in financial distress by providing principal 
forgiveness, term extension, an other-than-insignificant payment delay or interest rate reduction. When 
principal forgiveness is provided, the amount of forgiveness is charged-off against the allowance for credit 
losses.   

As of January 1, 2023, the Company had $6,479 in nonaccrual loans. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
the Company had commitments to lend additional funds of $23 and $129, respectively, on loans modified to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty. 
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
Information regarding nonaccrual loans during the years ended December 31 follows: 

 
  December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 

      

Interest 
Income 

Recognized     

Interest 
Income 

Recognized 

  
Nonaccrual 

loans Total 
During the  
Period on 

Nonaccrual 
loans Total  

During the  
Period on 

  
With No 

ACL 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
Nonaccrual 

Loans  
With No 

ACL 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
Nonaccrual 

Loans  
Commercial       
 Commercial & industrial  $2,088  $9,922  $ -  $44  $5,029  $ -  
 Commercial real estate 1,479  10,479  -  14  2,156  -  
 Commercial construction -  - - -  - - 
    Total commercial 3,567  20,401  -  58  7,185  -  
Agriculture       
 Agriculture real estate 1,036  4,144  -  1,175  4,703  -  
 Agriculture production -  867 11  -  3,180  60  
   Total agriculture 1,036  5,011  11  1,175  7,883  60  
Residential Mortgage       
  1 - 4 family first lien 265  756  2  -  446  -  
  1 - 4 family junior lien 253  293  - 99  137  - 
  Residential construction - 1,455 - - - - 
   Total residential mortgage 518  2,504  -  99  583  -  
Consumer       
 Auto -  297  - -  66  - 
 Consumer other - 29  -  - 26  - 
  Total consumer - 326  - - 92  - 
Other loans and leases - - - - - - 

        
Totals  $5,121  $28,242  $13  $1,332  $15,743  $60  

Occasionally, the Company modifies loans to borrowers in financial distress by providing principal 
forgiveness, term extension, an other-than-insignificant payment delay or interest rate reduction. When 
principal forgiveness is provided, the amount of forgiveness is charged-off against the allowance for credit 
losses.   

As of January 1, 2023, the Company had $6,479 in nonaccrual loans. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
the Company had commitments to lend additional funds of $23 and $129, respectively, on loans modified to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty. 
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
The following presents the amortized cost basis as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 of loans modified to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty during the year disaggregated by loan class and by type of 
concession granted. 
 

As of December 31, 2024       

    Other-than-Insignificant 
Combination:  

Term Extension 
   Term Extension  Payment Delay and Principal Forgiveness 

    % of Total   % of Total   % of Total  
    Class of   Class of   Class of  

   Amortized  Financing  Amortized  Financing  Amortized  Financing  

   Cost Basis Receivable Cost Basis Receivable Cost Basis Receivable 

Commercial       

   Commercial & industrial  $3,633  1.6% $26  0.0% $26  
                     

0.0%  

   Commercial real estate 1,538  0.5% -  - -  
                     

-  

      Total commercial 5,171  0.9% 26  0.0% 26 
                     

0.0%  

Agriculture       

   Agriculture production 365  0.3% -  
                 

-  282  
                     

0.2%  

      Total agriculture 365  0.1% -  
                 

-  282  
                     

0.1%  

Residential Mortgage       

   1 - 4 family first lien 121  0.1% - 
                 

-  -  - 
   1 - 4 family junior lien 140 0.5% - - - - 

      Total residential mortgage 261  0.2% -  
                 

-  -  - 

  
 

  
    

  Totals $5,797  0.5% $26  - $308  0.0% 
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
As of December 31, 2023       

    Other-than-Insignificant 
Combination:  

Term Extension 
   Term Extension  Payment Delay and Principal Forgiveness 

    % of Total   % of Total   % of Total  
    Class of   Class of   Class of  

   Amortized  Financing  Amortized  Financing  Amortized  Financing  

   Cost Basis Receivable Cost Basis Receivable Cost Basis Receivable 

Commercial       

   Commercial & industrial  $3,403  1.5% $6  0.0% $ -  
                     

-  

   Commercial real estate 194  0.1% 114  0.0% -  
                     

-  

      Total commercial 3,597  0.6% 120  0.0% - 
                     

-  

Agriculture       

   Agriculture production 2,559  0.1% -  
                 

-  -  
                     

-  

      Total agriculture 2,559  0.1% -  
                 

-  -  
                     

-  

Residential Mortgage       

   1 - 4 family junior lien 17  0.1% - 
                 

-  99  0.3% 

      Total residential mortgage 17  0.0% -  
                 

-  99  0.1% 

  
 

  
    

  Totals $6,173  0.6% $120  0.0% $99  0.0% 

 

The following tables presents the financial effect of the loan modifications presented above to borrowers 
experiencing financial difficulty for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

As of December 31, 2024  Other-than-Insignificant   

 Term Extension Payment Delay    
Principal 

Forgiveness 
      

Commercial & industrial  9 loans extended on a short-term basis  

Adjusted to interest only 
followed by a single pay 
note for borrower to sell 

assets    

Commercial real estate 
Extended one year to encourage capital 

injection into the project   
 

 

Agriculture production Loans extended on a short-term basis   

 

 

1 - 4 family first lien 
One loan extended to facilitate sale 
of collateral   

 

 

1 - 4 family junior lien 
Two loans extended on a short-term 
basis   
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
As of December 31, 2023  Other-than-Insignificant   

  Term Extensions Payment Delay    Principal Forgiveness 
      

Commercial & industrial  
Extended 5 to 13 months to the 

maturity dates  
Interest Only payments 

for 7 months   

Commercial real estate Extended 1-5 years to maturity dates  
Interest only payments 

for 7 months 
 

 

Agriculture production Extended 13 months to maturity dates   

 

 

1 - 4 family junior lien Extended 6 years to maturity date   

 

Reduced amortized 
cost basis between 
$412M and $442M 

dependent on 
finalization of the sale 

of collateral. 

 

The following table presents the amortized cost basis of loans that had a payment default during the years 
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and were modified in the twelve months prior to that default to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty:   

As of December 31, 2024   Term extension 

Combination: Term 
Extension and 
Payment Delay 

Commercial    

 Commercial & industrial   $703  $52 

  Total commercial  
                                 

703  52 
Residential Mortgage  

  

 1 - 4 junior lien                              140  - 

  Total residential mortgage                              140  - 
      
  Totals    $843  $52 

 
As of December 31, 2023   Term extension 

Commercial   
 Commercial & industrial   $29  

 Commercial real estate                                    41  

  Total commercial                                   70  
Agriculture  

 
 

 Agriculture production                              2,179  

  Total agriculture                              2,179       

  Totals    $2,249  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
The following table presents the period-end amortized cost basis of loans that have been modified in the 
past 12 months to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty by payment status and class of financing 
receivable: 

       Greater than    
As of December 31, 2024 Current  30-89 days  90 days  Total 

Commercial        

 Commercial & industrial  $2,982  $703   $ -   $3,685  

 Commercial real estate 1,538   -    -    1,538  

  Total commercial 4,520  703   -  
 

5,223  

Agriculture   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Agriculture production 647   -    -    647  

  Total agriculture 647   -    -    647  

Residential Mortgage  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1 - 4 family first lien 121  -  -  121 

 1 - 4 family junior lien 140   -   -    140  

  Total residential mortgage 261   -    -    261  

  
 

 
      

  Totals  $5,428   $703    $ -    $6,131  

 
       Greater than    

As of December 31, 2023 Current  30-89 days  90 days  Total 

Commercial        

 Commercial & industrial  $3,380  $ -   $29   $3,409  

 Commercial real estate 267   41    -    308  

  Total commercial 3,647  41   29  
 

3,717  

Agriculture   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Agriculture production 380   2,179    -    2,559  

  Total agriculture 380   2,179    -    2,559  

Residential Mortgage  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 1 - 4 family junior lien 116   -   -    116  

  Total residential mortgage 116   -    -    116  

  
 

 
      

  Totals  $4,143   $2,220    $29    $6,392  
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(4)    Loans (continued) 
The following table presents the period-end amortized cost basis of loans that have been modified in the 
past 12 months to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty by payment status and class of financing 
receivable: 

       Greater than    
As of December 31, 2024 Current  30-89 days  90 days  Total 

Commercial        

 Commercial & industrial  $2,982  $703   $ -   $3,685  

 Commercial real estate 1,538   -    -    1,538  

  Total commercial 4,520  703   -  
 

5,223  

Agriculture   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Agriculture production 647   -    -    647  

  Total agriculture 647   -    -    647  

Residential Mortgage  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1 - 4 family first lien 121  -  -  121 

 1 - 4 family junior lien 140   -   -    140  

  Total residential mortgage 261   -    -    261  

  
 

 
      

  Totals  $5,428   $703    $ -    $6,131  

 
       Greater than    

As of December 31, 2023 Current  30-89 days  90 days  Total 

Commercial        

 Commercial & industrial  $3,380  $ -   $29   $3,409  

 Commercial real estate 267   41    -    308  

  Total commercial 3,647  41   29  
 

3,717  

Agriculture   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Agriculture production 380   2,179    -    2,559  

  Total agriculture 380   2,179    -    2,559  

Residential Mortgage  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 1 - 4 family junior lien 116   -   -    116  

  Total residential mortgage 116   -    -    116  

  
 

 
      

  Totals  $4,143   $2,220    $29    $6,392  
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(5)   Loan Servicing 
Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Mortgage loans 
serviced for others as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, were approximately $270,357 and $275,743, 
respectively. Custodial escrow balances maintained in conjunction with serviced loans were approximately 
$3,508 and $3,451 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The balances for mortgage servicing rights, carried at fair value and included in other assets, were $2,866 
and $3,303 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The estimated fair value of mortgage servicing rights is determined using a valuation model that calculates 
the present value of expected future servicing and ancillary income, net of expected servicing costs. The 
model incorporates various assumptions, such as discount rates and prepayment speeds based on market 
data from independent organizations. Information about the estimated fair value of mortgage servicing rights 
at December 31: 

 
  2024   2023   2022 

      

Range of discount rates  9.63% - 11.63%    9.75% - 11.75%    9.00% - 11.00%  

Range of prepayment speeds  6.01% - 15.03%    5.29% - 26.25%    6.30% - 26.25%  

 

(6)   Mortgage Banking Loan Commitments 
The Company enters into commitments to fund residential mortgage loans (interest rate locks) at specified 
times in the future, with the intention that these loans will be subsequently sold to third-party investors. A 
mortgage loan commitment binds the Company to lend funds to a potential borrower at a specified interest 
rate and within a specified period of time, generally up to 60 days after inception of the rate lock. It is the 
Company’s practice to enter into best efforts and mandatory delivery forward commitments for the future 
delivery of residential mortgage loans to third-party investors when an interest rate lock commitment is 
granted. Best efforts forward commitments bind the Company to deliver a mortgage loan to a third-party 
investor only if the underlying loan is funded. Mandatory delivery forward commitments bind the Company to 
deliver a residential mortgage loan to a third-party investor even if the underlying loan never funds.  As of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had approximately $650 and $805, respectively, in interest rate 
lock commitments outstanding. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had approximately $1,299 
and $1,611, respectively, in mandatory delivery forward commitments outstanding. These outstanding 
mortgage loan commitments are considered to be derivatives.  

(7)   Foreclosed Assets and Other Real Estate Owned 
There was no other real estate owned at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. 

Residential real estate loans that are in process of foreclosure totaled $154 at December 31, 2024 and $79 
at December 31, 2023. 
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(8)   Premises and Equipment 
  The components of premises and equipment at December 31 are as follows: 

 
 2024  2023 

    
Land $2,640   $2,640  

Buildings and leasehold improvements 22,813   
22,700  

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 14,973    14,440  

 40,426   39,780  

Less accumulated depreciation 23,301    22,255  
    

  $17,125    $17,525  

  Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $1,172, $1,098,    
      and $1,106, respectively. 

(9)  Other Assets 
  The components of other assets at December 31 are as follows: 

 
 2024  2023 

Accrued interest receivable $10,856   $9,763  
Mortgage servicing rights 2,866   3,303  
Net deferred tax assets 17,118   16,960  
Qualified affordable housing project investments 4,354   4,818  
Other 5,698    2,114  

  $40,892    $36,958  

(10) Deposits 
Deposits consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023: 
 

               2024             2023 

    
Non-interest-bearing demand  $249,076  $256,205  

Interest-bearing demand  223,977  220,417  

Money market and savings  394,292  408,278  

Time   533,358  472,657  

 
 

  
    $1,400,703  $1,357,557  

The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $250 was approximately $171,121 
and $143,788 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Time deposits are included in the interest-
bearing deposits on the consolidated balance sheets. 
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(8)   Premises and Equipment 
  The components of premises and equipment at December 31 are as follows: 

 
 2024  2023 

    
Land $2,640   $2,640  

Buildings and leasehold improvements 22,813   
22,700  

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 14,973    14,440  

 40,426   39,780  

Less accumulated depreciation 23,301    22,255  
    

  $17,125    $17,525  

  Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $1,172, $1,098,    
      and $1,106, respectively. 

(9)  Other Assets 
  The components of other assets at December 31 are as follows: 

 
 2024  2023 

Accrued interest receivable $10,856   $9,763  
Mortgage servicing rights 2,866   3,303  
Net deferred tax assets 17,118   16,960  
Qualified affordable housing project investments 4,354   4,818  
Other 5,698    2,114  

  $40,892    $36,958  

(10) Deposits 
Deposits consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023: 
 

               2024             2023 

    
Non-interest-bearing demand  $249,076  $256,205  

Interest-bearing demand  223,977  220,417  

Money market and savings  394,292  408,278  

Time   533,358  472,657  

 
 

  
    $1,400,703  $1,357,557  

The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $250 was approximately $171,121 
and $143,788 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Time deposits are included in the interest-
bearing deposits on the consolidated balance sheets. 
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(10) Deposits (continued) 
At December 31, 2024, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

 
2025  $447,000  

2026  61,727  

2027  12,168  

2028  8,724  

2029 and thereafter   3,739  

 
 

 
    $533,358  

(11) Income Taxes 
The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31 are as follows: 

 
  2024   2023   2022 

      
Current - federal $2,611   $2,956   $2,700  

Current - state 883    1,326    1,267  

  3,494    4,282    3,967  

      
Deferred - federal 50   195   74  

Deferred - state 26    97    41  

  76    292    115  

      
Total income tax expense $3,570    $4,574    $4,082  
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(11) Income Taxes (continued) 
A reconciliation of the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective federal 
income tax rate with the resulting dollar amounts is shown in the following table: 
            
  2024   2023   2022 

   % of    % of    % of 

   Pretax    Pretax    Pretax 
  Amount   Earnings   Amount   Earnings   Amount   Earnings 

            
Statutory federal tax $3,409   21.0%  $4,015   21.0%  $3,718   21.0% 
(Decrease) increase in taxes            
resulting from:            
  Tax-exempt interest (281)  (1.7%)  (330)  (1.7%)  (598)  (3.4%) 
  Bank-owned life insurance (315)  (1.9%)  (123)  (0.6%)  (122)  (0.7%) 

  State taxes, net of             
  federal benefit 963   5.9%  1,124   5.9%  1,033   5.8% 
  Low-income housing credits (181)  (1.2%)  (62)  (0.3%)  -  - 
  Other (23)   (0.1%)   (50)   (0.3%)   51    0.3% 

            
Effective tax rates $3,570    22.0%   $4,574    24.0%   $4,082    23.0% 

The tax effects of existing temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax 
liabilities and deferred tax assets at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are summarized as follows: 

 
  2024   2023 

Deferred tax assets:  
 

 
Allowance for credit losses $4,152   $4,046  
CECL reserve for unfunded loan commitments 180   188  
Available-for-sale securities 13,196   12,962  
Deferred compensation and other 2,450    2,611  

    
Total deferred tax assets $19,978    $19,807  

    
Deferred tax liabilities:  

 
 

FHLB stock dividend $55   $55  
Depreciation 1,381   1,299  
Mortgage servicing rights and other 1,289   1,365  
Purchase accounting adjustments 135    128  

  
 

 
Total deferred tax liabilities 2,860    2,847  

  
 

 
Net deferred tax assets $17,118    $16,960  

 

No valuation allowance has been recorded since deferred tax assets are expected to be realized. 
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(11) Income Taxes (continued) 
A reconciliation of the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective federal 
income tax rate with the resulting dollar amounts is shown in the following table: 
            
  2024   2023   2022 

   % of    % of    % of 

   Pretax    Pretax    Pretax 
  Amount   Earnings   Amount   Earnings   Amount   Earnings 

            
Statutory federal tax $3,409   21.0%  $4,015   21.0%  $3,718   21.0% 
(Decrease) increase in taxes            
resulting from:            
  Tax-exempt interest (281)  (1.7%)  (330)  (1.7%)  (598)  (3.4%) 
  Bank-owned life insurance (315)  (1.9%)  (123)  (0.6%)  (122)  (0.7%) 

  State taxes, net of             
  federal benefit 963   5.9%  1,124   5.9%  1,033   5.8% 
  Low-income housing credits (181)  (1.2%)  (62)  (0.3%)  -  - 
  Other (23)   (0.1%)   (50)   (0.3%)   51    0.3% 

            
Effective tax rates $3,570    22.0%   $4,574    24.0%   $4,082    23.0% 

The tax effects of existing temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax 
liabilities and deferred tax assets at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are summarized as follows: 

 
  2024   2023 

Deferred tax assets:  
 

 
Allowance for credit losses $4,152   $4,046  
CECL reserve for unfunded loan commitments 180   188  
Available-for-sale securities 13,196   12,962  
Deferred compensation and other 2,450    2,611  

    
Total deferred tax assets $19,978    $19,807  

    
Deferred tax liabilities:  

 
 

FHLB stock dividend $55   $55  
Depreciation 1,381   1,299  
Mortgage servicing rights and other 1,289   1,365  
Purchase accounting adjustments 135    128  

  
 

 
Total deferred tax liabilities 2,860    2,847  

  
 

 
Net deferred tax assets $17,118    $16,960  

 

No valuation allowance has been recorded since deferred tax assets are expected to be realized. 
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(12) Transactions with Related Parties 
The Company had, and may be expected to have in the future, loans or other banking transactions in the 
ordinary course of business with directors, significant stakeholders, principal officers, their immediate 
families, and affiliated companies in which they are principal stakeholders (commonly referred to as related 
parties). These loans and transactions were on the same terms as those for comparable loans and 
transactions with non-related parties. 

Activity for related party loans for the years ending December 31, is as follows: 

 
  2024   2023 
    

Balance at beginning of year $4,526   $3,584  

Effect of changes to related parties 2,648  - 

New credits 3,806   2,026  

Repayments (1,986)   (1,084) 
    

Balance at end of year $8,994    $4,526  

Deposit accounts from related parties totaled approximately $25,895 and $21,284 at December 31, 2024 
and 2023, respectively. 

(13) Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Concentrations 
Financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk: 

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business 
to meet the financing needs of their customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend 
credit, credit lines, letters of credit, and overdraft protection. They involve, to varying degrees, elements of 
credit risk in excess of amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets. 

The Company’s exposure to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by the other parties to the financial 
instruments, for commitments to extend credit, and letters of credit are represented by the contractual 
amounts of those instruments. The Banks use the same credit policies in making commitments and issuing 
letters of credit as they do for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

A summary of the contractual amounts of the Banks’ exposures to off-balance-sheet risk as of December 
31 is as follows: 

  2024   2023 
    

Unused lines of credit and other loan commitments $268,566   $267,108  

Commercial letters of credit 10   320  

Performance and standby letters of credit 2,031   3,915  
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(13) Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Concentrations 
(continued) 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers as long as there are no violations of any 
conditions established in the contracts. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require the payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to 
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loan facilities to customers. The Banks evaluate each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-
case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Banks upon extension of credit, 
is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies; but may include 
accounts receivable, inventory, crops, livestock, property and equipment, residential real estate, and 
income-producing commercial properties. 

Standby, performance and commercial letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Banks to 
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. They are considered financial guarantees under 
FASB guidance. The fair value of these financial guarantees is considered immaterial. 

The Company participates in the FHLB Mortgage Partnership Finance Program (the "Program"). In addition 
to entering into forward commitments to sell mortgage loans to a secondary market agency, the Company 
enters into firm commitments to deliver loans to the FHLB through the Program. Under the Program, loans 
are funded by the FHLB, and the Company receives an agency fee reported as a component of gain on sale 
of loans. The Company had no firm commitments outstanding to deliver loans through the Program at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023. Once delivered to the Program, the Company provides a contractually 
agreed- upon credit enhancement and performs servicing of the loans. Under the credit enhancement, the 
Company is liable for losses on loans delivered to the Program after application of any mortgage insurance 
and a contractually agreed-upon credit enhancement provided by the Program subject to an agreed-upon 
maximum. The agreed-upon accumulated credit enhancement provided by the Program totaled $1,471, 
subject to an agreed- upon maximum. The fee the Company received for this credit enhancement was not 
material in each of the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. 

Concentration of credit risk: 

The Company provides several types of loans to customers including real estate, agricultural, commercial, 
and installment loans. The largest component of loans is secured by residential real estate, commercial real 
estate, or other interest in real property. Lending activities are conducted with customers in a wide variety of 
industries as well as with individuals with a wide variety of credit requirements. The Company does not have 
a concentration of loans in any specific industry. Credit risk, as it relates to the Company’s business activities, 
tends to be geographically concentrated in that the majority of the customer base lies within the surrounding 
communities served by its subsidiary banks. 

(14) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase amounted to $15,017 and $31,554 at December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively, and are collateralized by U.S. agencies and mortgage-backed investment 
securities with fair values of approximately $48,023 and $61,393. The weighted-average interest rates on 
these agreements were 1.36% and 2.00% at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Securities sold 
under agreements to repurchase mature on a daily basis. 
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(13) Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Concentrations 
(continued) 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers as long as there are no violations of any 
conditions established in the contracts. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require the payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to 
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loan facilities to customers. The Banks evaluate each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-
case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Banks upon extension of credit, 
is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies; but may include 
accounts receivable, inventory, crops, livestock, property and equipment, residential real estate, and 
income-producing commercial properties. 

Standby, performance and commercial letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Banks to 
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. They are considered financial guarantees under 
FASB guidance. The fair value of these financial guarantees is considered immaterial. 

The Company participates in the FHLB Mortgage Partnership Finance Program (the "Program"). In addition 
to entering into forward commitments to sell mortgage loans to a secondary market agency, the Company 
enters into firm commitments to deliver loans to the FHLB through the Program. Under the Program, loans 
are funded by the FHLB, and the Company receives an agency fee reported as a component of gain on sale 
of loans. The Company had no firm commitments outstanding to deliver loans through the Program at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023. Once delivered to the Program, the Company provides a contractually 
agreed- upon credit enhancement and performs servicing of the loans. Under the credit enhancement, the 
Company is liable for losses on loans delivered to the Program after application of any mortgage insurance 
and a contractually agreed-upon credit enhancement provided by the Program subject to an agreed-upon 
maximum. The agreed-upon accumulated credit enhancement provided by the Program totaled $1,471, 
subject to an agreed- upon maximum. The fee the Company received for this credit enhancement was not 
material in each of the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. 

Concentration of credit risk: 

The Company provides several types of loans to customers including real estate, agricultural, commercial, 
and installment loans. The largest component of loans is secured by residential real estate, commercial real 
estate, or other interest in real property. Lending activities are conducted with customers in a wide variety of 
industries as well as with individuals with a wide variety of credit requirements. The Company does not have 
a concentration of loans in any specific industry. Credit risk, as it relates to the Company’s business activities, 
tends to be geographically concentrated in that the majority of the customer base lies within the surrounding 
communities served by its subsidiary banks. 

(14) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase amounted to $15,017 and $31,554 at December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively, and are collateralized by U.S. agencies and mortgage-backed investment 
securities with fair values of approximately $48,023 and $61,393. The weighted-average interest rates on 
these agreements were 1.36% and 2.00% at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Securities sold 
under agreements to repurchase mature on a daily basis. 
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(15) Employee and Director Benefit Plans 
The Company and the Banks maintain a 401(k) plan with profit sharing features covering substantially all 
employees under which the Company has historically provided a discretionary match of eligible employee 
contributions. Total 401(k) expense was approximately $666, $593, and $574, for 2024, 2023, and 2022, 
respectively. Each plan participant elects how the employer contributions are invested; whereby the 
participants choose between purchasing the Company’s common stock or investing in the plan’s investment 
funds. 

In addition, the Company and the Banks maintain non-qualified deferred compensation plans whereby 
certain directors and officers are provided with guaranteed annual payments for periods ranging from 10 to 
15 years after reaching a variation of retirement ages pending participant plan. The compensation plans are 
funded by bank-owned life insurance policies which had an aggregate death benefit of approximately 
$52,224 and $53,902 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Banks accrue amounts to be 
paid over the participant’s active service life. The accrued benefits were $3,338, $3,421, and $3,329 at 
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Non-qualified deferred compensation expenses were 
$298, $339, and $539 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

(16) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Other Borrowings 
At December 31, FHLB advances and other borrowings are as follows: 

 
FHLB Advances at December 31: 2024   2023 

    
Fixed rate advances with rates ranging from 0.00% to 4.49% and    

weighted average rates of 3.44% and 3.96% as of December 31, 2024 and    

2023, respectively. Interest is payable monthly with principal due at     

maturity. $33,667   $20,738 

 
Advances are collateralized by 1-4 family mortgage loans, other qualifying loans and securities. The total 
amounts of collateral securing FHLB advances were approximately $292,055 and $133,256 as of December 
31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. FHLB advances are subject to a prepayment penalty if they are repaid 
prior to maturity. FHLB advances are also secured by $3,542 and $1,727 of FHLB stock owned by the 
Company at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The Company participates in the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago’s Discount Window Lending Program. 
Primary advances generally mature daily and bear interest at a generally approved rate in relation to the 
federal funds rate. The primary advance interest rate at December 31, 2024 was 4.5%. There were no 
outstanding advances at December 31, 2024 and 2023. Advances are collateralized by investment securities 
pledged totaling approximately $13,870 and $14,200 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, to the 
Federal Reserve Bank. 

Additional other borrowings totaled $7,244 and $5,216 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and 
mature from 2027 to 2033, at interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%. 
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(16) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Other Borrowings (continued) 
At December 31, the scheduled maturities of FHLB advances and other borrowings are as follows: 
 

  2024   2023 

    
2024    $2,526  
2025 $6,000   6,000  
2026 6,000   5,000  
2027 7,513   1,541  
2028 2,971   6,488  
2029 11,992   
2030 and thereafter 6,435    4,399  

                            
  $40,911    $25,594  

The Company had federal funds purchased with its main correspondent institutions totaling $5,804 and 
$1,153 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Federal funds purchased generally mature within one 
day from transaction date. The weighted average interest rate was 4.75% as of December 31, 2024. 

The Company has a $15,000 line of credit with Bankers’ Bank secured by the stock of the Banks. The line 
has a variable interest rate of Wall Street Journal Prime less 0.50 percentage points. As of December 31, 
2024, the balance of the line was $0.    

(17) Fair Value Measurements 
Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit 
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date. The standard describes three levels of inputs 
that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Company 
has the ability to access as of the measurement date. 

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices; such as quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or 
can be corroborated by observable market data. 

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’s own assumptions about the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

The following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets recorded at fair value: 

Securities available-for-sale: The fair values of the Company’s securities available-for-sale are primarily 
determined by matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt 
securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for specific securities, but rather by relying on the 
securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted securities. The values determined by matrix pricing are 
considered Level 2 fair value measurements. 
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(16) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Other Borrowings (continued) 
At December 31, the scheduled maturities of FHLB advances and other borrowings are as follows: 
 

  2024   2023 

    
2024    $2,526  
2025 $6,000   6,000  
2026 6,000   5,000  
2027 7,513   1,541  
2028 2,971   6,488  
2029 11,992   
2030 and thereafter 6,435    4,399  

                            
  $40,911    $25,594  

The Company had federal funds purchased with its main correspondent institutions totaling $5,804 and 
$1,153 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Federal funds purchased generally mature within one 
day from transaction date. The weighted average interest rate was 4.75% as of December 31, 2024. 

The Company has a $15,000 line of credit with Bankers’ Bank secured by the stock of the Banks. The line 
has a variable interest rate of Wall Street Journal Prime less 0.50 percentage points. As of December 31, 
2024, the balance of the line was $0.    

(17) Fair Value Measurements 
Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit 
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date. The standard describes three levels of inputs 
that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Company 
has the ability to access as of the measurement date. 

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices; such as quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or 
can be corroborated by observable market data. 

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’s own assumptions about the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

The following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets recorded at fair value: 

Securities available-for-sale: The fair values of the Company’s securities available-for-sale are primarily 
determined by matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt 
securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for specific securities, but rather by relying on the 
securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted securities. The values determined by matrix pricing are 
considered Level 2 fair value measurements. 
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(17) Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
Marketable equity securities: Marketable equity securities with a readily determinable fair value are 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair value measurement of equity securities with a readily 
determinable fair value are based on the quoted price of the security and is considered a Level 1 fair value 
measurement. Equity securities without a readily determinable fair value are measured at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis when transaction prices for identical or similar securities are identified. Fair value 
measurements on equity securities without a readily determinable fair value are generally considered a Level 
2 fair value measurement. 

Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans: The Company does not record loans at fair value on a 
recurring basis. However, from time to time, fair value adjustments are recorded on these loans to reflect (1) 
partial write-downs, through charge-offs or specific reserve allowances, that are based on the current 
appraised or market-quoted value of the underlying collateral or (2) the full charge-off of the loan carrying 
value. The fair value of collateral dependent individually evaluated loans is generally based on recent real 
estate appraisals. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by independent appraisers to 
adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments are 
usually significant and typically result in a Level 3 classification. Non-real estate collateral may be valued 
using an appraisal, net book value of the borrower’s financial statements or aging reports, adjusted or 
discounted based on management’s expertise and knowledge of the borrower and borrower’s business. Fair 
value measurements prepared internally are based on management's comparisons to sales of comparable 
assets, but include significant unobservable data and are therefore considered Level 3 measurements. 

Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned: Real estate acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure 
is not measured at fair value on a recurring basis. However, other real estate is initially measured at fair 
value (less estimated costs to sell) when it is acquired and may also be measured at fair value (less 
estimated costs to sell) if it becomes subsequently impaired. The fair value measurement for each property 
may be obtained from an independent appraiser or prepared internally. Fair value measurements obtained 
from independent appraisers generally utilize a market approach based on sales of comparable assets 
and/or an income approach. Such measurements are usually considered Level 2 measurements. However, 
management routinely evaluates fair value measurements of independent appraisers by comparing actual 
selling prices to the most recent appraisals. If management determines significant adjustments should be 
made to the independent appraisals based on these evaluations, these measurements are considered Level  
3 measurements. Fair value measurements prepared internally are based on management's comparisons 
to sales of comparable assets but include significant unobservable data and are therefore considered Level 
3 measurements. 

Mortgage servicing rights: Mortgage servicing rights are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 
Serviced loan pools are stratified by year of origination, and a fair value measurement is obtained for each 
stratum from an independent firm. The measurement is based on recent sales of mortgage servicing rights 
with similar characteristics. Since the fair value measurement is based on observable market data, it is 
considered a Level 2 measurement. 
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(17) Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
The following table presents the Company’s approximate fair-value hierarchy for the assets measured at fair 
value as of December 31: 

As of December 31, 2024   Fair Value Measurements at 

   Reporting Date Using 

 Total   (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3) 
Assets measured at fair value        

on a recurring basis:        
Assets:        

Securities available-for-sale        
U.S. Government sponsored entities        
and U.S. agencies $119,299   $6,079  $113,220    
State and municipal 91,272     88,927   $2,345  

Agency mortgage-backed 157,813     157,813    
Corporate debt securities 1,561     1,561    

Marketable equity securities 1,066     1,066    
Mortgage servicing rights 2,866    2,866   

Assets measured at fair value        
on a non-recurring basis:        
Assets:        

Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans $35,716       $35,716  

 
Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans, which are measured for impairment using the fair value 
of collateral, had a carrying value of $38,748 with specific reserves of $3,032 as of December 31, 2024. 

The changes in level 3 items occurring between December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024 were increases 
in collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans. 
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(17) Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
The following table presents the Company’s approximate fair-value hierarchy for the assets measured at fair 
value as of December 31: 

As of December 31, 2024   Fair Value Measurements at 

   Reporting Date Using 

 Total   (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3) 
Assets measured at fair value        

on a recurring basis:        
Assets:        

Securities available-for-sale        
U.S. Government sponsored entities        
and U.S. agencies $119,299   $6,079  $113,220    
State and municipal 91,272     88,927   $2,345  

Agency mortgage-backed 157,813     157,813    
Corporate debt securities 1,561     1,561    

Marketable equity securities 1,066     1,066    
Mortgage servicing rights 2,866    2,866   

Assets measured at fair value        
on a non-recurring basis:        
Assets:        

Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans $35,716       $35,716  

 
Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans, which are measured for impairment using the fair value 
of collateral, had a carrying value of $38,748 with specific reserves of $3,032 as of December 31, 2024. 

The changes in level 3 items occurring between December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024 were increases 
in collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans. 
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(17) Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
As of December 31, 2023   Fair Value Measurements at 

   Reporting Date Using 

 Total   (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3) 
Assets measured at fair value        

on a recurring basis:        
Assets:        

Securities available-for-sale        
U.S. Government sponsored entities        
and U.S. agencies $116,429   $8,068  $108,361    
State and municipal 101,473     99,128   $2,345  

Agency mortgage-backed 146,161     146,161    
Corporate debt securities 1,555     1,555    

Marketable equity securities 1,066     1,066    
Mortgage Servicing Rights 3,303    3,303   

Assets measured at fair value        
on a non-recurring basis:        
Assets:        

Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans $16,361       $16,361  

Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans, which are measured for impairment using the fair value 
of collateral, had a carrying value of $17,690 with specific reserves of $1,329 as of December 31, 2023. 

The following table presents quantitative information about level 3 fair value measurements for financial 
instruments measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2024 and 2023: 

 
 Valuation  Unobservable   
  Technique   Input   Range 

      
Collateral-dependent individually evaluated loans,  Sales comparison  Appraised values  10% - 20% 

net of specific reserves approach     
      

FASB guidance requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. In cases where quoted 
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation 
techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate 
and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates may not be realized in 
immediate settlement of the instrument. Accounting guidance excludes certain financial instruments and 
certain nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. These fair value disclosures may not 
represent the fair value of the Company. 
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(17) Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2024 are as follows: 

     Fair Value Measurements at 

         Reporting Date Using 

 Carrying  Fair            

 Amount   Value   (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3) 

Financial Assets:          
   Cash and cash equivalents $64,000   $64,000   $64,000      
   Interest-bearing deposits in other           
     banks- term deposits 4,434   4,386   4,386      
   Securities 373,208   372,995   6,079  $364,571   $2,345 

   Marketable equity securities and other 7,592   7,592   3,542   1,131   2,919 

   Loans held for sale 852   852     852    
   Loans, net of allowance 1,100,657   1,092,095       1,092,095  

   Accrued interest receivable 10,856   10,856   10,856      
Financial liabilities:          
   Demand and saving deposits $867,345   $867,345   $867,345      
   Time deposits 533,358   527,249     $527,249    
   Federal Funds Purchased 5,804   5,804   5,804      
   Securities sold under           
     agreements to repurchase 15,017   14,913     14,913   
   FHLB advances and other borrowings 40,911   39,849     39,849   
   Accrued interest payable 3,169   3,169   3,169      
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(17) Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2024 are as follows: 

     Fair Value Measurements at 

         Reporting Date Using 

 Carrying  Fair            

 Amount   Value   (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3) 

Financial Assets:          
   Cash and cash equivalents $64,000   $64,000   $64,000      
   Interest-bearing deposits in other           
     banks- term deposits 4,434   4,386   4,386      
   Securities 373,208   372,995   6,079  $364,571   $2,345 

   Marketable equity securities and other 7,592   7,592   3,542   1,131   2,919 

   Loans held for sale 852   852     852    
   Loans, net of allowance 1,100,657   1,092,095       1,092,095  

   Accrued interest receivable 10,856   10,856   10,856      
Financial liabilities:          
   Demand and saving deposits $867,345   $867,345   $867,345      
   Time deposits 533,358   527,249     $527,249    
   Federal Funds Purchased 5,804   5,804   5,804      
   Securities sold under           
     agreements to repurchase 15,017   14,913     14,913   
   FHLB advances and other borrowings 40,911   39,849     39,849   
   Accrued interest payable 3,169   3,169   3,169      
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(17) Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2023 are as follows: 

     Fair Value Measurements at 

         Reporting Date Using 

 Carrying  Fair            

 Amount   Value   (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3) 

Financial Assets:          
   Cash and cash equivalents $45,718   $45,718   $45,718      
   Interest-bearing deposits in other           
     banks- term deposits 4,511   4,399   4,399      
   Securities 369,214   368,983   8,068  $358,570   $2,345 

   Marketable equity securities and other 5,718   5,718   4,639   1,079    
   Loans held for sale 990   1,012     1,012    
   Loans, net of allowance 1,069,450   1,043,192       1,043,192  

   Accrued interest receivable 9,763   9,763   9,763      
Financial liabilities:          
   Demand and saving deposits $884,900   $884,900   $884,900      
   Time deposits 472,657   468,839     $468,839    
   Federal Funds Purchased 1,153   1,153   1,153      
   Securities sold under           
     agreements to repurchase 31,554   31,234     $31,234    
   FHLB advances and other borrowings 25,954   25,571     25,571    
   Accrued interest payable 2,082   2,082   2,082      
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(18) Stock Compensation Plans 
During 2012, the Company approved an equity incentive plan to promote the long-term financial success 
of the Company through stock-based awards to employees, directors or service providers who contribute 
to that success. This equity incentive plan permits Company management to approve and grant a 
maximum of 150,000 shares of common stock-based awards in the form of any combination of stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards or cash incentive awards. The 2012 equity incentive 
plan expired in September 2022 and a new plan was implemented in October 2022. The 2022 plan mirrors 
the expired 2012 plan with the exception of the cash incentive awards which were excluded from the 2022 
plan. 
 
Stock Options 
 
The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a closed form option valuation 
model (Black-Scholes). Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the Company’s common 
stock. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-vesting termination behavior. 
The expected term of options granted is based on historical data and represents the period of time that 
options granted are expected to be outstanding, which takes into account that the options are not 
transferable. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury 
yield in effect at the time of the grant. The Company’s accounting policy is to recognize forfeitures as they 
occur. 
 
No options were granted for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. For the year ended December 
31, 2022, 5,000 shares of non-qualified stock options were granted under the 2012 equity incentive plan.   
 
For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized $16, $16, and $25 in 
compensation expense for stock options, respectively. No tax benefits were recognized for the three-year 
period ended December 31, 2024. No options were exercised during the years ended December 31, 2024, 
2023 and 2022. 
 
The following table summarizes the activity of options for the year ended: 
 

  December 31, 2024   December 31, 2023 

   Weighted    Weighted 

   Average    Average 

   Exercise    Exercise 
  Options   Price   Options   Price 

        
Shares under option, beginning of year 5,000   $31.40   21,666   $34.60  

Granted during the year -  -  -  - 

Forfeited and expired during the year -  -  (16,666)  35.55 

Exercised during the year -  -  -   - 
        

Shares under option, end of year 5,000    31.40    5,000    31.40  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Options exercisable, end of year 2,000    31.40    1,000    31.40  
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(18) Stock Compensation Plans 
During 2012, the Company approved an equity incentive plan to promote the long-term financial success 
of the Company through stock-based awards to employees, directors or service providers who contribute 
to that success. This equity incentive plan permits Company management to approve and grant a 
maximum of 150,000 shares of common stock-based awards in the form of any combination of stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards or cash incentive awards. The 2012 equity incentive 
plan expired in September 2022 and a new plan was implemented in October 2022. The 2022 plan mirrors 
the expired 2012 plan with the exception of the cash incentive awards which were excluded from the 2022 
plan. 
 
Stock Options 
 
The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a closed form option valuation 
model (Black-Scholes). Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the Company’s common 
stock. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-vesting termination behavior. 
The expected term of options granted is based on historical data and represents the period of time that 
options granted are expected to be outstanding, which takes into account that the options are not 
transferable. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury 
yield in effect at the time of the grant. The Company’s accounting policy is to recognize forfeitures as they 
occur. 
 
No options were granted for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. For the year ended December 
31, 2022, 5,000 shares of non-qualified stock options were granted under the 2012 equity incentive plan.   
 
For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized $16, $16, and $25 in 
compensation expense for stock options, respectively. No tax benefits were recognized for the three-year 
period ended December 31, 2024. No options were exercised during the years ended December 31, 2024, 
2023 and 2022. 
 
The following table summarizes the activity of options for the year ended: 
 

  December 31, 2024   December 31, 2023 

   Weighted    Weighted 

   Average    Average 

   Exercise    Exercise 
  Options   Price   Options   Price 

        
Shares under option, beginning of year 5,000   $31.40   21,666   $34.60  

Granted during the year -  -  -  - 

Forfeited and expired during the year -  -  (16,666)  35.55 

Exercised during the year -  -  -   - 
        

Shares under option, end of year 5,000    31.40    5,000    31.40  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Options exercisable, end of year 2,000    31.40    1,000    31.40  
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(18) Stock Compensation Plans (continued) 
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2024: 

    Remaining   

    Contractual Life   
Exercise Price   Number Outstanding   (Years)   Number Exercisable 

 $31.40  
 

                          5,000  
 

7.50 
                           

2,000  

 
Total shares available for grant under the 2022 equity incentive plan was 121,233 and 139,071 as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
 
Stock Awards 

Stock awards are granted in the form of restricted stock awards (RSA’s) and restricted stock units (RSU’s) 
which typically vest equally over a two-year period; however, there were RSAs and RSUs issued in 2021 
that vest over a five-year period. RSA’s share in dividends and have voting rights throughout the vesting 
period. RSU’s are paid a dividend equivalent during the vesting period but have no voting rights. 

The following table summarizes information regarding unvested restricted stock and shares outstanding 
during the year ended: 
 

  December 31, 2024   December 31, 2023 

         Weighted         Weighted 

     Unvested        Average          Unvested       Average 

      Shares         Grant Value           Shares        Grant Value 

Restricted stock, beginning of year 14,267   $28.88  
14,190  

 
$33.01 

Granted during the year 20,374   28.40   
11,426  

 
26.93  

Forfeited during the year (1,657)  27.92   
(812) 

 
29.77  

Vested during the year (10,600)   29.45    (10,537)   32.25  

Restricted stock, end of year 22,384   28.20   14,267   28.88  

 
During 2024, 2023 and 2022, total accrued compensation expense of $355, $294 and $390 (before tax 
benefits of $101, $84 and $111) was recorded from amortization of restricted shares expected to vest, 
respectively. Future projected compensation expense (before tax benefits), assuming all restricted shares 
eventually vest to employees, would be $419. 
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(19) Stock Repurchase Program 
In November 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a stock repurchase plan. The plan provided 
a maximum dollar threshold of aggregate cost of repurchases under the plan, set a limit on the daily number 
of shares that could be repurchased and provided a maximum per share price. This plan, scheduled to 
expire on November 30, 2021, was subsequently extended to November 30, 2022 with modification of 
maximum per share price and daily purchase limits. A revised repurchase plan was approved by the Board 
of Directors as of December 30, 2021 and effective January 1, 2022, replacing the prior active plan. The 
revised stock repurchase plan provided additional funding, updated maximum per share price and adjusted 
daily limits and expired June 1, 2022 with no further extensions approved in 2022. A new stock repurchase 
plan was approved by the Board of Directors as of October 25, 2023 and effective November 1, 2023. The 
approved plan sets a maximum repurchase dollar limit, maximum per share price and daily limits. The plan 
has an expiration date of June 1, 2024. For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the 
Company repurchased 75,000, 60,000 and 44,760 shares under the repurchase program, respectively.  
 
The purchase price for the shares of the Company’s stock repurchased is reflected as a reduction to 
shareholders’ equity as treasury stock. 

(20) Earnings Per Common Share 
For the years ended December 31, earnings per common share have been computed based on the 
following: 

  2024   2023   2022 

      
Net income $12,664    $14,546    $13,626  

  
 

 
 

 
Net income available to common stockholders 12,664    14,546    13,626  

      
Average number of common shares outstanding 3,509,509   3,562,885   3,565,548  
Effect of dilutive options 19,270    4,723    12,280  

  
 

 
 

 
Average number of common shares outstanding used  

 
 

 
 

     to calculate diluted earnings per common share 3,528,779    3,567,608    3,577,828  

(21) Equity and Regulatory Matters 
The Company and Banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal 
and state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory 
and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material 
effect on the Company’s financial statements. 

In September 2019, the FDIC finalized a rule that introduced an optional simplified measure of capital 
adequacy known as the community bank leverage ratio (CBLR) framework. In order to qualify for the CBLR 
framework, the Company and Banks must have a Tier 1 leverage ratio of greater than 9%, less than      
$10 billion in total consolidated assets, and limited amounts of off-balance-sheet exposures and trading 
assets and liabilities. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company and Banks qualified for and elected 
to use the CBLR framework. An institution opting into the CBLR framework and meeting all requirements 
under the framework will be considered to have met the well-capitalized ratio requirements under the Prompt 
Corrective Action regulations and will not be required to report or calculate risk-based capital. 
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(19) Stock Repurchase Program 
In November 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a stock repurchase plan. The plan provided 
a maximum dollar threshold of aggregate cost of repurchases under the plan, set a limit on the daily number 
of shares that could be repurchased and provided a maximum per share price. This plan, scheduled to 
expire on November 30, 2021, was subsequently extended to November 30, 2022 with modification of 
maximum per share price and daily purchase limits. A revised repurchase plan was approved by the Board 
of Directors as of December 30, 2021 and effective January 1, 2022, replacing the prior active plan. The 
revised stock repurchase plan provided additional funding, updated maximum per share price and adjusted 
daily limits and expired June 1, 2022 with no further extensions approved in 2022. A new stock repurchase 
plan was approved by the Board of Directors as of October 25, 2023 and effective November 1, 2023. The 
approved plan sets a maximum repurchase dollar limit, maximum per share price and daily limits. The plan 
has an expiration date of June 1, 2024. For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the 
Company repurchased 75,000, 60,000 and 44,760 shares under the repurchase program, respectively.  
 
The purchase price for the shares of the Company’s stock repurchased is reflected as a reduction to 
shareholders’ equity as treasury stock. 

(20) Earnings Per Common Share 
For the years ended December 31, earnings per common share have been computed based on the 
following: 

  2024   2023   2022 

      
Net income $12,664    $14,546    $13,626  

  
 

 
 

 
Net income available to common stockholders 12,664    14,546    13,626  

      
Average number of common shares outstanding 3,509,509   3,562,885   3,565,548  
Effect of dilutive options 19,270    4,723    12,280  

  
 

 
 

 
Average number of common shares outstanding used  

 
 

 
 

     to calculate diluted earnings per common share 3,528,779    3,567,608    3,577,828  

(21) Equity and Regulatory Matters 
The Company and Banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal 
and state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory 
and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material 
effect on the Company’s financial statements. 

In September 2019, the FDIC finalized a rule that introduced an optional simplified measure of capital 
adequacy known as the community bank leverage ratio (CBLR) framework. In order to qualify for the CBLR 
framework, the Company and Banks must have a Tier 1 leverage ratio of greater than 9%, less than      
$10 billion in total consolidated assets, and limited amounts of off-balance-sheet exposures and trading 
assets and liabilities. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company and Banks qualified for and elected 
to use the CBLR framework. An institution opting into the CBLR framework and meeting all requirements 
under the framework will be considered to have met the well-capitalized ratio requirements under the Prompt 
Corrective Action regulations and will not be required to report or calculate risk-based capital. 
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(21) Equity and Regulatory Matters (continued) 
As of December 31, 2024, the most recent notification from the regulatory agencies categorized all six Banks 
as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well 
capitalized, the Banks must maintain minimum regulatory capital ratios as set forth in the table. There are 
no conditions or events since December 31, 2024, which management believes have changed the capital 
categories of the Banks. 

The Company and the Banks actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31 are presented in the 
following tables: 

          To Be Well Capitalized 
Under Prompt Corrective 

Action Provisions   
 

Actual   

      Amount                   Amount   
       In $000s        Ratio                 In $000s        Ratio 

As of December 31, 2024        
Community Bank Leverage Ratio        

Company 186,354  11.19%  149,864   9.00% 
Northwest 43,820  9.44%  41,765   9.00% 
German 33,194  9.65%  30,967   9.00% 
Davis 20,832  11.23%  16,695   9.00% 
Freeport 40,402  9.91%  35,179   9.00% 
Lena 12,016  11.49%  9,250   9.00% 
Herscher 21,715  11.94%  15,103   9.00% 

 
          To Be Well Capitalized 

Under Prompt Corrective 
Action Provisions   

 
Actual   

      Amount                   Amount   
       In $000s        Ratio                  In $000s        Ratio 

As of December 31, 2023        
Community Bank Leverage Ratio        

Company 173,232  10.76%  144,899   9.00% 
Northwest 39,422  9.22%  38,480   9.00% 
German 31,592  9.37%  30,337   9.00% 
Davis 19,755  10.94%  16,247   9.00% 
Freeport 38,269  9.91%  34,764   9.00% 
Lena 11,469  11.49%  8,986   9.00% 
Herscher 21,149  11.94%  15,937   9.00% 

 

(22) Dividends 
State banking regulations restrict the amount of dividends that a bank may pay to its stockholders. The 
regulations provide that dividends are limited to the balance of undivided profits, subject to capital-adequacy 
requirements, plus an additional amount equal to the Bank’s current-year earnings through the date of any 
declaration of dividends. The payment of dividends would also be restricted if a Bank does not meet the 
minimum capital conservation buffer as defined by Basel III regulatory capital guidelines. 
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(23) Segment Information 
The Company’s reportable segment is determined by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) in 
assessing performance and in deciding how to allocate resources. The CODM is the CEO of the company.  
The Company provides a variety of banking services to individuals and businesses through its facilities that 
are similar in their nature, operations, and economic characteristics. The accounting policies for the services 
are described in Note 1 Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies. Loans, investments, and 
deposits provide the revenues in the banking operation. Interest expense, provisions for credit losses, and 
payroll provide the significant expenses in the banking operation. The CODM uses consolidated net income 
to monitor results, evaluate budget-to-actual variances, perform competitive analyses that benchmark the 
Company to competitors, and determine whether to reinvest earnings in the Company or to deploy capital 
in other ways to maximize shareholder value. The CODM is regularly provided with the consolidated income 
and expenses, as well as assets, as presented on the Consolidated Statements of Income and 
Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively, to assess performance and decide how to allocate resources 
on a Company-wide basis. The CODM also uses such information to monitor the level of expense 
associated with the various aspects of the Company’s business that supports its clients, generate revenue, 
and are associated with the overall administration of the Company’s operations. In addition, internal 
financial information is used by the CODM to monitor credit quality and credit loss expense. As a result, the 
Company has determined it has only one reportable segment. 
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Independent Auditor's Report on Supplemental Information

To the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
Foresight Financial Group, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the "financial statements") of Foresight Financial Group,
Inc. and its subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and have issued our report
thereon dated March 10, 2025, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audits
were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The consolidating
schedule 1 - December 31, 2024 balance sheet and consolidating schedule 2 - December 31, 2024 statement of
income are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

March 10, 2025
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(23) Segment Information 
The Company’s reportable segment is determined by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) in 
assessing performance and in deciding how to allocate resources. The CODM is the CEO of the company.  
The Company provides a variety of banking services to individuals and businesses through its facilities that 
are similar in their nature, operations, and economic characteristics. The accounting policies for the services 
are described in Note 1 Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies. Loans, investments, and 
deposits provide the revenues in the banking operation. Interest expense, provisions for credit losses, and 
payroll provide the significant expenses in the banking operation. The CODM uses consolidated net income 
to monitor results, evaluate budget-to-actual variances, perform competitive analyses that benchmark the 
Company to competitors, and determine whether to reinvest earnings in the Company or to deploy capital 
in other ways to maximize shareholder value. The CODM is regularly provided with the consolidated income 
and expenses, as well as assets, as presented on the Consolidated Statements of Income and 
Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively, to assess performance and decide how to allocate resources 
on a Company-wide basis. The CODM also uses such information to monitor the level of expense 
associated with the various aspects of the Company’s business that supports its clients, generate revenue, 
and are associated with the overall administration of the Company’s operations. In addition, internal 
financial information is used by the CODM to monitor credit quality and credit loss expense. As a result, the 
Company has determined it has only one reportable segment. 
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Consolidating Schedule – Statement of Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

 

December 31, 2024      
 German American  State Bank  Northwest 
  State Bank   of Davis   Bank 

Interest and dividend income:      
Loans, including fees $15,117   $6,109   $21,823  
Debt securities:      

Taxable 1,194   1,268   1,559  
Tax-exempt 466   289   158  

Interest-bearing deposits in banks and other 943   112   757  
Federal funds sold 52   5   26  

Total interest and dividend income 17,772    7,783    24,323  
      

Interest expense:      
Deposits 7,100   2,917   8,503  
Federal funds purchased 1   7   18  
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase -   32   228  
FHLB and other borrowings 186   100   529  

Total interest expense 7,287    3,056    9,278  
      

Net interest and dividend income 10,485   4,727   15,045  
      

Provision for credit losses -    -    812  
      

Net interest and dividend income,      
  after provision for credit losses 10,485   4,727   14,233  

Noninterest income:      
Customer service fees 277   87   760  
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries -   -   -  
Loss on sales and calls of AFS securities, net -  (35)  - 
Gain on sale of loans, net -   -   772  
Loan servicing fees, net -   -   241  
Bank owned life insurance 112   54   641  
ATM / interchange fees 717   223   722  
Other 276   208   286  

Total noninterest income 1,382    537    3,422  
      

Noninterest expense:      
Salaries and employee benefits 4,112   1,283   5,220  
Occupancy expense of premises, net 546   147   817  
Outside services 925   491   1,559  
Data processing 1,144   617   1,467  
Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net -  -   10  
Other 1,624   538   2,197  

Total noninterest expenses 8,351    3,076    11,270  
      

Income before income taxes 3,516   2,188   6,385  
Income tax expense 750    491    1,525  

      
Net income $2,766    $1,697    $4,860  



63

2024 Annual Report

Consolidating Schedule – Statement of Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

 

December 31, 2024      
 German American  State Bank  Northwest 
  State Bank   of Davis   Bank 

Interest and dividend income:      
Loans, including fees $15,117   $6,109   $21,823  
Debt securities:      

Taxable 1,194   1,268   1,559  
Tax-exempt 466   289   158  

Interest-bearing deposits in banks and other 943   112   757  
Federal funds sold 52   5   26  

Total interest and dividend income 17,772    7,783    24,323  
      

Interest expense:      
Deposits 7,100   2,917   8,503  
Federal funds purchased 1   7   18  
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase -   32   228  
FHLB and other borrowings 186   100   529  

Total interest expense 7,287    3,056    9,278  
      

Net interest and dividend income 10,485   4,727   15,045  
      

Provision for credit losses -    -    812  
      

Net interest and dividend income,      
  after provision for credit losses 10,485   4,727   14,233  

Noninterest income:      
Customer service fees 277   87   760  
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries -   -   -  
Loss on sales and calls of AFS securities, net -  (35)  - 
Gain on sale of loans, net -   -   772  
Loan servicing fees, net -   -   241  
Bank owned life insurance 112   54   641  
ATM / interchange fees 717   223   722  
Other 276   208   286  

Total noninterest income 1,382    537    3,422  
      

Noninterest expense:      
Salaries and employee benefits 4,112   1,283   5,220  
Occupancy expense of premises, net 546   147   817  
Outside services 925   491   1,559  
Data processing 1,144   617   1,467  
Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net -  -   10  
Other 1,624   538   2,197  

Total noninterest expenses 8,351    3,076    11,270  
      

Income before income taxes 3,516   2,188   6,385  
Income tax expense 750    491    1,525  

      
Net income $2,766    $1,697    $4,860  

Consolidating Schedule – Statement of Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

 
           

State  Lena  State Bank      Foresight Financial    Consolidated 
Bank   State Bank   of Herscher       Group, Inc.   Eliminations   Total 

           
$17,780   $4,192   $4,263   $ -   $ -  $69,284  

           
1,431   464   1,298  -   -   7,214  

377   78   279   -   -   1,647  
361   75   441   32   (270)  2,451  
18   5   9   -   (7)   108  

19,967    4,814    6,290    32    (277)   80,704  
           
           

8,208   1,817   1,580   -   (270)  29,855  
29   12   4   -   (7)   64  

224   -   -   -   -   484  
324   157   18   -   -   1,314  

8,785    1,986    1,602    -    (277)   31,717  
           

11,182   2,828   4,688   32   -  48,987  
           

80   10    150    -    -    1,052  
           
           

11,102   2,818   4,538   32   -   47,935  

           
115   80   101   -   -   1,421  

-   -   -   15,870   (15,870)  -  
-  (76)  -   -   -   (111) 
-   -  -  -  -  772  
-  -  9   -  -  249  

46   27   119   111   -  1,110  
217   79   185   -   -  2,143  

1,026   36   98   5,839   (6,160)  1,609  
1,404    146    512    21,820    (22,030)   7,193  

           
           

3,320   579   1,627   8,529   -   24,670  
271   87   269   333   (66)  2,404  
877   322   511   457   (3,531)  1,611  

1,038   405   679   401   (2,563)  3,188  
1   -  -   1  -   12 

1,105   294   422   829   -   7,009  
6,612    1,687    3,508    10,550    (6,160)   38,894  

           
5,894   1,277   1,542   11,302   (15,870)  16,234  
1,550    301    315    (1,362)   -    3,570  

           
$4,344    $976    $1,227    $12,664    $(15,870)   $12,664  
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Consolidating Schedule – Statement of Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

 

December 31, 2023      
 German American  State Bank  Northwest 
  State Bank   of Davis   Bank 

Interest and dividend income:      
Loans, including fees $13,734   $5,070   $18,009  
Debt securities:      

Taxable 865   1,169   1,257  
Tax-exempt 515   369   175  

Interest-bearing deposits in banks and other 432   173   734  
Federal funds sold 44   20   58  

Total interest and dividend income 15,590    6,801    20,233  
     

Interest expense:      
Deposits 5,118   1,983   5,220  
Federal funds purchased 7   3   16  
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase -   28   160  
FHLB and other borrowings 146   68   335  

Total interest expense 5,271    2,082    5,731  
     

Net interest and dividend income 10,319   4,719   14,502  
      

Provision for credit losses 410    165    472  
      

Net interest and dividend income,      
  after provision for credit losses 9,909   4,554   14,030  

Noninterest income:      
Customer service fees 224   59   613  
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries -   -   -  
(Loss) gain on sales and calls of AFS securities, net (3)  (52)  (32) 
Gain on sale of loans, net -   -   611  
Loan servicing fees, nett -   -   804  
Bank owned life insurance 97   48   162  
ATM / interchange fees 732   226   710  
Other 697   220   660  

Total noninterest income 1,747    501    3,528  
     

Noninterest expense:      
Salaries and employee benefits 4,087   1,270   5,221  
Occupancy expense of premises, net 490   132   846  
Outside services 930   480   1,472  
Data processing 1,164   580   1,236  
Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net (37)  -   -  
Other 1,907   584   1,752  

Total noninterest expenses 8,541    3,046    10,527  
     

Income before income taxes 3,115   2,009   7,031  
Income tax expense 690    437    1,828  

      
Net income $2,425    $1,572    $5,203  
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December 31, 2023      
 German American  State Bank  Northwest 
  State Bank   of Davis   Bank 

Interest and dividend income:      
Loans, including fees $13,734   $5,070   $18,009  
Debt securities:      

Taxable 865   1,169   1,257  
Tax-exempt 515   369   175  

Interest-bearing deposits in banks and other 432   173   734  
Federal funds sold 44   20   58  

Total interest and dividend income 15,590    6,801    20,233  
     

Interest expense:      
Deposits 5,118   1,983   5,220  
Federal funds purchased 7   3   16  
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase -   28   160  
FHLB and other borrowings 146   68   335  

Total interest expense 5,271    2,082    5,731  
     

Net interest and dividend income 10,319   4,719   14,502  
      

Provision for credit losses 410    165    472  
      

Net interest and dividend income,      
  after provision for credit losses 9,909   4,554   14,030  

Noninterest income:      
Customer service fees 224   59   613  
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries -   -   -  
(Loss) gain on sales and calls of AFS securities, net (3)  (52)  (32) 
Gain on sale of loans, net -   -   611  
Loan servicing fees, nett -   -   804  
Bank owned life insurance 97   48   162  
ATM / interchange fees 732   226   710  
Other 697   220   660  

Total noninterest income 1,747    501    3,528  
     

Noninterest expense:      
Salaries and employee benefits 4,087   1,270   5,221  
Occupancy expense of premises, net 490   132   846  
Outside services 930   480   1,472  
Data processing 1,164   580   1,236  
Foreclosed assets and other real estate owned, net (37)  -   -  
Other 1,907   584   1,752  

Total noninterest expenses 8,541    3,046    10,527  
     

Income before income taxes 3,115   2,009   7,031  
Income tax expense 690    437    1,828  

      
Net income $2,425    $1,572    $5,203  

Consolidating Schedule – Statement of Income 
(000s omitted except share data) 

 

 
           

State  Lena  State Bank      Foresight Financial    Consolidated 
Bank   State Bank   of Herscher       Group, Inc.   Eliminations   Total 

           
$16,179   $3,356   $3,571   $ -   $ -  $59,919  

           
1,375   478   1,143   -   -   6,287  

416   166   294   -   -   1,935  
168   109   904   19   (341)  2,198  
26   17   23   -   -   188  

18,164    4,126    5,935    19    (341)   70,527  
           
           

5,635   1,184   1,003   -   (341)  19,802  
43   6   3   -   -   78  

480   -   -   -   -   668  
120   39   -   -   -   708  

6,278    1,229    1,006    -    (341)   21,256  
           

11,886   2,897   4,929   19   -  49,271  
           

(42)   100    -    -    -    1,105  
           
           

11,928   2,797   4,929   19   -   48,166  

           
92   75   92   -   -   1,155  
0   0   0   16,777   (16,777)  -  

(40)  (58)  -   -   -   (185) 
-   -  -  -  -  611  
-  -  10   -  -  814  

41   26   112   99   -  585  
232   80   175   -   -  2,155  
915   58   146   5,477   (5,752)  2,421  

1,240    181    535    22,353    (22,529)   7,556  
           
           

3,287   625   1,699   6,438   -   22,627  
273   83   264   273   (63)  2,298  
764   336   400   238   (3,309)  1,311  
965   399   611   451   (2,381)  3,025  

-   (1)  -   (5)  -   (43) 
996   300   487   1,358   -   7,384  

6,285    1,742    3,461    8,753    (5,753)   36,602  
           

6,883   1,236   2,003   13,619   (16,776)  19,120  
1,794    297    455    (927)   -    4,574  

           
$5,089    $939    $1,548    $14,546    $(16,776)   $14,546  
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